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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext 4501

Fax: 603-27M827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 4, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
enter into retroactive agreements with the two (2) vendors listed below, for,the provision of Community
Collaboration services, by providing a service array of best practice parental assistance programming to
the Winnipesauke and Manchester communities to reduce child maltreatment and the risk of children
entering foster care, in an amount not to exceed $1,600,000, effective retroactive to March 5, 2019, upon
Governor and the Executive Council approval through June 30, 2021. 25% Federal Funds, 75% General
Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor Number Location
Contract

Amount

Manchester Community Health
Center

#157274-8001
145 Hollis Street,

Manchester. NH 03101
$800,000

Lakes Region Community Services #233352-R001
719 North Main Street,

Laconia, NH 03246
$800,000

Total: ^ $1,600,000

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts
within the price limitation, class lines and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-042-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD-FAMILY SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount
y

2020 - 645-504004 General Funds for Other 42105745 $800,000

2021 645-504004 General Funds for Other 42105745 $400,000

Sub Total: $1,200,000
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05-95-090-902010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, COMMUNITY COLLABORATION

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

90070470 $200,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

90070470 $200,000

Sub Total: $400,000

Total: $1,600,000

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive due to a programmatic determination to align federal and state
resources, the timeline necessary to do this, and delays in the contracting process due to the volume of
contracts pending in the DHHS pipeline. The Department was awarded Federal Funds through the
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families grant in October 2018. This provided
an important opportunity to align and leverage both these federal resources along with state resources
provided through SB 592 for Parental Assistance Programs. The opportunity to simultaneously target
efforts towards reducing child maltreatment and the number of children at risk of foster care in two needy
communities was deemed priority: however, this delayed the procurement process timeline until Federal
Funds were accepted to expend by the Fiscal Committee in late January 2019. Once this occurred, the
procurement process moved forward as rapidly as possible by DHHS staff; however, due to other
contracts pending with the DHHS contracts unit delays occurred in finalizing proposal selections and
notifying vendors.

Once notified of their award, due the condensed timeline, vendors needed to initiate preparatory
activities immediately. These activities included; researching and selecting an array of evidence-based
services and associated materials, assessing staff training needs, planning and scheduling trainings and
facilitating stakeholder meetings to promote improved coordination of services and referrals.

The purpose of this request is to design evidence-based programs and identify best practices that
will prevent out-of-home placements of children and reduce the number of child protection cases. The
contracts support development of collaborative educational programs and professional partnerships
within the targeted communities. These programs and partnerships include designing prevention
programs, court diversion programs, and programs that offer alternative to out of home placement for
children.

New Hampshire currently ranks 5th in the nation in the overall rate of overdose of prescription
and injection drugs. In State Fiscal Year 2017, New Hampshire spent $36 million on foster care to serve
children coming into the system. Through these contracts, the Department will expand access to
community-based services for high-risk families, and provide prevention programming focused on
strengthening and preserving families.

Manchester Community Health Center and Lakes Region Community Services were selected for
this project through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on the Department
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of Health and Human Services' web site from December 10, 2018 through January 22, 2019. The
Department received two (2) proposals. The proposals were reviewed and scored by a team of
individuals with program specific knowledge. The two selected vendors were able to demonstrate within
their proposals, the ability to provide evidence-based strategies unique to the targeted communities they
will serve, as well as a readiness to engage in boundary-spanning leadership activities outlined in the
grant proposal. Some of the activities the vendors will engage in include developing Community
Integration Teams (CITs), as well as the development and implementations of evidence-based programs
that increase parental protective factors. The knowledge based on science shows the impact that
adverse childhood experiences can have on a child and the impact to their overall long-term health
outcomes. The Score Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of these contracts, the Department
has the option to extend contract services for up^to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

The goal of these contracts is to provide services that strengthen and preserve families, prior to
entering the child welfare system, and implement a community-based approach to responding to the
needs families have through increasing "protective factors" such as, parental resilience, increasing social
connections, concrete supports in times of need, knowledge of parenting and child development, and
increasing social and emotional competence. When present, these "protective factors" can help to
mitigate risk and can increase health and overall well-being for families and children.

The following performance measures and objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of
the contracts:

Year 1: Performance Measures for Planning Period:

•  Every six (6) months, 90% of CIT membership will participate in training that
includes Boundary Spanning Leadership (BSL) training workshops and evaluation
activities.

•  Every six (6) months,.90% of CIT membership will participate in evaluation
baseline and measurement studies such as surveys, focus groups and/or in-depth
interviews, as appropriate to project activities.

•  CIT members must attend 90% of coaching sessions.-

Year 2: Ongoing Implementation Efforts, which include, but are not limited to:

•  Tracking performance measures specific to the CIT multi-sectoral interventions.

•  Plan Do Study Act cycles for quality improvement.

•  Collecting and participating in evaluation activities intended to result in:

o  Increased effectiveness of population based prevention,

o  Increases in protective factors,

o Reductions in reports of child maltreatment.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request. New Hampshire children
and their families may not receive prevention activities within the targeted communities identified as
needing the greatest prevention supports and services.

Area served: Manchester and Winnipesauke Public Health Region.
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Source of Funds: 25% Federal funds from CFDA 93.670 Administration for Children and Families,

FAIN 90CA1858 and 75% General funds.

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available, additional General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

rey A. Meyers
CMimissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Community Collaborations to

Strengthen and Preserve Families

RFP Name

RFP-2019-DPHS-23-COMMU

RFP Number Reviewer Names

Rhonda Siege!, Administrator
DPHS Health MgmtOfc

Bidder Name

^ Lakes Region Community Services

Pass/Fail

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

Sarah Moeckel, Administrator Family
Strength & Child Well-being Initiative,

235 183

Kai Giovanditto, DCYF, Community &
3- Family Support

2
Manchester Community Health Center 235 198

Ellen Chase-Lucard, Financial Admin,
4- DPHS

3 0 235 0

Amy Berquist, Financial Administrator
II. DPHS



FORM NUMBER P.37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: RFP-20l9»DPHS-23-COMMU-02 Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

I. I State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Manchester Community Health Center
1.4 Contractor Address

145 Hollis Street, Manchester, NH 03101

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-935-5210

1.6 Account Number

005-095-042-421010-

29580000, 05-095-090-
902010-70470000

1.7 Completion Date

June 30,2021

1.8 Price Limitation

$800,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

I  Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of /\^ , County of

On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1. 11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
Jhdicated in'block 1.12.
1.13.! Sig.natiirfeipfNot^ Public or Justice of the Peace

rSeaji
I..! 3.2 'Nam^and .Title of Notary or Justice of the Pe^

:iKuf^:rr

KURT LAWLOR-JONES, Notary Public
^  State of New Hampshire

My Commisoion Expires Ootobof-i?r3Q3

1.14 State Agoncy Signature ,

Date:

. 15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by th^ttorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

. 18 Approvalty the Gov/rnor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case

the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event

of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,

indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $ 1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

of 4 i/Hl
Contractor Initials /

Date^^^



14.3 The Contractor shall fiimish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,

certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
fiimish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement

are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in fiill force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2019, and the. Department shall not be liable for
any payments for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature
and funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 biennia.

1.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.5. The Contractor shall provide contracted services to families living in the City of
Manchester.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall develop Community Implementation Teams (CITs), which
may include, but are not limited to;

2.1.1. Evidence-based prevention programs, including programs with
existing Department supported services.

2.1.2. Court diversion and family court programs.

2.1.3. Programs that offer altemative dispositions for juveniles.

2.1.4. Community agencies and providers who serve families with children
up to eight years of age.

2.1.5. Public Health Networks.

2.1.6. Family Resource Centers.

2.1.7. Integrated Delivery Networks.

2.1.8. DHHS District Offices

2.2. The Contractor shall create, coordinate, administer and manage Community
Implementations Teams (CIT) that:

2.2.1. Work with the Evaluator and DHHS to complete and submit a
practice plan and a federal project plan. Participate in Plan Do Study
Act - Revise (PDSA-R) cycles to increase saturation and scale of
evidence-based prevention practices.

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

Exhibit A

2.2.2. Plan, coordinate, and implement Boundary Spanning Leadership

2.2.3. Hire a Community Implementation Team Coordinator.

2.2.4. Purchase supporting materials

2.2.5. Provide on-slte face-to-face training to providers.

2.3. The Contractor shall utilize the results of the environmental scan and the needs

assessment (Section 2.9) in conjunction with Department input, to provide
planning, technical assistance, and face-to-face training on targeted topics, as
determined by the Department, which may include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. Evidence-based and/or evidence-informed parental education on:

2.3.1.1. Current impact of adverse childhood experiences

2.3.1.2. Baseline or foundational understanding of toxic stress levels
for families In the cornmunity and in the CIT sites.

2.3.1.3. Policies and programs that promote, serve and retum
knowledge, behaviors and practices between parents and
children that:

2.3.1.3.1. Prevent abuse and neglect.

2.3.1.3.2. Strengthen positive parenting.

2.3.1.4. Programs that will assist families with identifying and
addressing risk factors that could lead to contact with the
child welfare system.

2.3.1.5. Delivery of trauma-informed care across the continuum for
individuals and families with children up to 8 years of age.

2.3.1.6. Strategies that support the needs of families who have had
involvement with the Division for Children, Youth and
Families resulting in unfounded allegation of abuse or
neglect with:

2.3.1.6.1. Reasonable concern.

2.3.1.6.2. Parental substance use.

2.3.1.6.3. Discovery of economic or social challenges.

2.3.1.6.4. Strategies for working with children impacted
by familial substance use disorder.

2.3.1.6.5. Training and strategies for supporting the
needs of young children and families from
various cultures and languages.

2.3.1.6.6. Training, coaching and implementation of
Boundary Spanning Leadership (BSL)
strategies.

2.4. The Contractor shall coordinate trainings with a variety of agencies, including
other CITs, to ensure trainings are developed, planned and aligned with

Manchester Communrty Health Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
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evidence-based services that are culturally and linguistically competent and
most appropriate for the target audience needs.

2.5. Contractor shall ensure that all training includes instruction and guidance
relating to safeguarding confidentiality of individually identifiable or protected
health information, as required by state or federal law or regulations.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure services and supports offered to families in their
respective areas of service complement existing state programs.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure a CIT Coordinator is assigned job duties that
include, but are not limited to:

2.7.1. Working with team members to draft meeting agendas and meeting
notes.

2.7.2. Conducting local needs assessments.

2.7.3. Leading program-planning efforts.

2.7.4. Identifying and engaging new and existing community partners to
plan and strategize implementation.

2.7.5. Representing the Contractor at statewide meetings.

2.7.6. Leading the development of a Practice Profile as it relates to
evaluation and service provision.

2.7.7. Facilitating, drafting, and finalizing CIT project work plan, timeline,
and logic model to align with DHHS project logic model and timeline.

2.7.8. Coordinating CIT data definition establishment and data collection
according to state and federal regulations

2.8. The Contractor shall offer parenting education and economic support services
and shall utilizing evidence-based strategies that align with the Administration
for Children and Families (ACF) child abuse and neglect strategies including,
but not limited to strengthening protective factors, ensuring the services are
accessible, available to, and designed to target a diverse population, which
Includes, but is not limited to:

2.8.1. Pregnant or parenting individuals.

2.8.2. Individuals and all family types with children up to eight (8) years of
age.

2.8.3. Caregivers, professionals, foster parents, grandparents.

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure the CIT conducts a needs

assessment/environmental scan to determine the training needs of the
organization that provide services to families. The Contractor shall ensure the
CIT is able to:

2.9.1. Determine the extent to which professionals require training in:

2.9.1.1. Adverse childhood experiences.

2.9.1.2. Toxic stress.

2.9.1.3. Trauma-informed care.
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2.9.1.4. Substance use disorders (SUD).

2.9.2. Measure respondent capacity to identify and address risk factors
among family members that could result in contact with the child
welfare system.

2.9.3. Determine respondent ability to address the needs of young children
and families from various cultures and languages.

2.9.4. Inquire about training in particular evidence-based curricula.

2.10. The Contractor shall define strengths and gaps among service providers and
shall identify needs for training upon the completion and evaluation of a survey.

2.11. The Contractor shall develop a roster of training opportunities for professionals
and parents that utilized evidence-based practices and programming with input
from the CIT and working groups.

2.12. The Contractor shall enlist the subject-matter expertise of CIT members and
other community partners to host training sessions that ensure accommodates
for the entire region. The Contractor shall:

2.12.1. Maintain a record of all trainers'and ensure the trainers are qualified
to teach their respective courses.

2.12.2. Ensure that any education programs collecting PHI that are
delivered on-line or on a website meet NH DolT requirements.

2.12.3. Provide all materials, equipment, and physical space, as well as,
logistical and staff support for the services and prevention and
education programs delivered.

2.13. The Contractor shall ensure evidence-based, culturally and linguistically
competent, prevention-focused parental assistance programs are available
within the community (Section 1.5) and are designed to:

2.13.1. Reduce child maltreatment.

2.13.2. Improve parent-child interactions.

2.13.3. Improve skills to regulate behavior and cope adaptively.

2.13.4. Improve coordination of services and referrals for young families.

2.14. The Contractor shall ensure a variety of prevention services are available to
parents of children up to eight (8) years of age, which may include, but are not
limited to:

2.14.1. Home visiting.

2.14.2. Parent education.

2.14.3. Family support sen/ices, including respite or crisis care.

2.15. The Contractor shall integrate the Five Protective Factors into the prevention
services to promote healthy development and well-being of children through:

2.15.1. Parental resilience.

2.15.2. Knowledge of parenting and child development.

Manchester Communrty HeaKh Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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2.15.3. Social connections.

2.15.4. Concrete supports in limes of need.

2.15.5. Social and emotional competence.

2.16. The Contractor shall promote prevention and service programs through
outreach and marketing in order to increase parent and community awareness
of services maximizing;

2.16.1. Attendance to events for families with children up to eight (8) years
of age.

2.16.2. Attendance to professional development opportunities.

2.16.3. Awareness of community resources available in the state, region,
and nationally.

2.17. The Contractor shall ensure professionals are trained to support, advise, and
guide families by focusing on prevention and elimination of child abuse and
neglect by training providers on:

2.17.1. Period of Purple Crying:

2.17.2. Strengthening Families Approach.

2.18. The Contractor shall utilize its current relationships in the community to
continue improving coordination of sen/ices and referrals.

2.19. The Contractor shall have a minimum of one representative acceptable to the
Department physically present at local and regional meetings to provide
opportunities to build credibility and likeability among other providers in order
to ensure local and regional agencies are confident referring clients for support
and services.

2.20. The Contractor shall implement a Community Outreach and Marketing plan
that ensures families throughout the region are aware of parental assistance
programs through mediums that include, but are not limited to:

2.20.1. Social Media - The Contractor shall develop posts that promote
evidence based parent support programs to target consumers and
providers.

2.20.2. Traditional Media - The Contractor shall develop press releases
announcing grant, programs, special events, inserts in calendar
listings.

2.20.3. Website and Email - The Contractor shall create content to promote
programs on the website, blogs, and email distribution list.

2.20.4. Grassroots Outreach - The Contractor shall develop flyers and
submit to the Department for approval, upon approval the flyers shall
be distributed and posted at community-based locations. The flyers
shall give credit to the Department for the funding.

2.20.5. Networking - The Contractor shall partner with community-based
providers to promote programs through their social media channels,
websites, email lists and program recipients.

c
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2.21. The Contractor shall ensure ongoing implementation efforts which may
include, but are not limited to;

2.21.1. Tracking performance measures specific to the GIT multi-sectoral
interventions.

2.21.2. PDSA-R cycles for quality improvement.

2.21.3. Collecting and participating in evaluation activities intended to result
in:

2.21.3.1. increase of effectiveness of population based prevention.

2.21.3.2. increase in protective factors.

2.21.3.3. Reduction in child maltreatment reports.

3. DATA TRACKING

3.1. The Contractor shall maintain an Outcome Tracking System, as approved by
the Department, which shall be implemented during the second year of the
resulting contract.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Outcome Tracking System is utilized to
capture local performance metrics consistent with targeted prevention efforts
determined through the comprehensive planning process during the first year
of contracted services. The Contractor shall:

3.2.1. Provide a fully managed Information Technology (IT) department to
that includes, but is. not limited to:

3.2.1.1. Dedicated response team.

3.2.1.2. Cybersecurity;

3.2.1.3. Dedicated response team with knowledge of state and
federal privacy laws;

3.2.2. Participate in Plan Do Study Act -Revise (PDSA-R) cycles to
increase saturation and scale of evidence-based prevention
practice.

3.2.3. Disseminate and review data at regular intervals with community
partners for continuous quality improvement efforts, PDSA-R cycles,
and data-based decision efforts.

3.2.4. Track local data and monitor process and outcome indicators
involved in the BSL method and GIT implementation.

3.2.5. Invite the evaluation team to attend CIT meetings in order to provide
training on the importance of the evaluation, specifics on data
collection and reporting.

3.3. The Contractor shall develop plans to share non-personally identifiable data
with the Department that includes, but is not limited to:

3.3.1. Pre-defined regional data definitions.

3.3.2. Measures of success.

3.3.3. Indicators of success to inform shared outcome metrics.
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3.3.4. Personal characteristics and experiences of participants.

3.4. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the State-identified Evaluation
Contractor. This work shall include, but is not limited to:

3.4.1. Facilitate cross-system data definition processes and manage a
shared-outcomes defining process and outcomes tracking system
which shall include, but is not limited to:

3.4.1.1. Identification of indicators of success to inform shared

outcome metrics within CIT.

3.4.1.2. Personal characteristics, challenges, barriers, and
experiences of parent and community organization
participants.

3.4.1.3. Sharing of pre-defined regional data definitions.

3.4.1.4. Establishment of shared measures of success.

3.4.1.5. Establishment and implementation of data collection, data
sharing agreements, security, and monitoring procedures
standards, consistent with all state and federal laws and

regulations relating to confidentiality, privacy and
information security.

3.4.1.6. Coordination of local data tracking and monitoring of
process and outcome indicators involved in the Boundary
Spanning Leadership (BSL) method and CIT
implementation.

3.4.1.7. Participate in Data Work Group Committee to contribute
feedback to the design and development of the Outcome
Tracking System. This includes, but is not limited to:

3.4.1.8. Participation in outcomes tracking system training and
technical assistance.

3.4.1.9. Submission of Outcome Tracking System data at regularly
defined intervals for purpose of the program evaluation.

3.4.2. Explore, incorporate and document concepts, methods, population
and performance-based data and tools that make cross-sectoral
work more successful and increase the value of collective

leadership.

3.4.3. Conduct a needs assessment/environmental scan of: services, CIT
child-abuse neglect prevention focus evidence-based practices,
training and technical assistance needs of community providers.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall submit annual and interim reports on process and
outcome measures for each area under study for quality improvement and
recommendations. No personally identifiable data shall be included in these
reports.
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4.2. The Contractor, in conjunction with the GIT, shall complete and submit a
Practice Plan no later than ninety (90) days after the contract effective date.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of 90% of its CIT members participate
in BSL training.

5.2. The Contractor shall track two (2) phases of performance measurement:

5.2.1. Year 1: Performance Measures for Planning Period, which includes,
but is not limited to:

5.2.1.1. Every six (6) months, 90% of CIT membership will
participate in BSL training workshops and evaluation
activities.

5.2.1.2. Every six (6) months, 90% of CIT membership will
participate in evaluation baseline and measurement studies
such as surveys focus groups and/or in-depth interviews, as
appropriate to project activities.

5.2.1.3. CIT teams shall attend 90% of coaching sessions.

5.2.2. Year 2: The Contractor shall work with the Department to set
performance measures for Year 2, at the conclusion of Year 1.

5.3. The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan for any
performance measure not achieved to the Department.

c-
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with Federal Funds, CFDA #93.670, DHHS, Administration
for Children and Families. Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN), #90CA1858and
General Funds.

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or future funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as specified in Exhibits B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-3, Budget.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20^^) working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

4.3.The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to initiate payment.

4.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

5. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

7. All invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

8. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.
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10. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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Exhibit B-1

Budget

N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BtMorfPregmm Nttm: Hanctiaatar Community Haatth Cantar

BudgM Roquoot ton Communffy Coeaboraboni to Slrangthan and Praaarva Famiaaa RFP-201«4}PKS-23-COMMU
(MamiTAFAy

BudeMPwIed: March 9.2019 • Juna 30.2019

TeU Program Coat Contractor Shara / Hatch Fundad by DHHS contract ahara
Uno Hom Oiraci irtdiiaci Total Oiraci bldlracl Total OfaKt Indlract Total
1. Totil SaivyWmu S  9.154.00 8 015.40 8 10 009 40 8 8 8  9.154.00 8 915.40 8 10.009.40
2. Emptejoo Boot flu $  2.059.85 8 205.97 8 2.205.02 8 8 8  2,059.65 8 205.97 8 2765.02
3. Cortsultani* $ 8 • 8 8 8 8 8
4. Eouipmont 8 8 8 8 8 8

Rontal $ 8 8 8 8 8 8
Ropoir and UaManma $ 8 8 8 8 8 8
Purehoao/Depfodetlen t  3278 00 8 327.00 8 3.005.00 8 8 8  377000 8 327.00 8

i. SueotM: $ 8 8 8 8 s 8 8
Educatenil S  17.31773 8 1.731.71 8 19048 94 8 8 8  17.31773 8 1.731.71 8 19.040.94
Lab 8 8 8 8 8 8
Phannacv 8 8 8 8 { 8 8
Madkal 8 8 8 8 8 8
Omea S  1.300.00 8 130.00 8 1.430.00 8 8 8  1.300.00 8 130.00 8 1 430.00

6. Traval $  1,000.00 8 100.00 8 1 100.00 8 8 8  1.000.00 8 1C0.W 8 1.100.00
7, Occupancy 8  4017.00 8 401.70 8 5.078.70 8 8 8  4.617.00 8 401.70 8
8. Currant E»an*aa 8 8 8 8 s 8 8

Talaphona 8  200.00 8 20.00 8 220.00 8 8 8  200.00 8 20.00 8 220.00
Poftaga 8 8 8 1 8 j 8 . 8
Subacftodons 8  807.00 8 00,70 8 087.70 8 8 8 8  007.00 8 00.70 8 687.70
Audttand Lagal 8 8 8 s 8 1 8 . 8
Inauranca 8  333.00 8 33.30 8 360.30 8 8 8 8  333.00 8 33.30 8 306.30
Boanj Ewanaaa 8 t 8 8 8 s 8 . 8 .

9. goWwara 8  00.00 8 0.00 8 00.00 8 8 8 8  60.00 8 0.00 8 06.00
10. MartialinqCemmunicaltau 1  3700.00 8 320.00 3520 00 8 t 8 8  3 20000 320.00 8 3.520.00
11. Staff Education and Training 8 8 8 1 8 1 8 . 8
12. Subcentraetaf/yimamanli f  138,492.31 8 13 04923 8 152 341.54 8 % 8 8  139 492.31
13. Odier (toadfic dataK* mandatorv): 8 » » t 8 8 8

8 » 8 8 8 8 8
8 » 8 » 8 8 8
8 » 8 * 8 . 8 .

TOTAL 8  181.81319 8 10,191.01 8 200.000.00 8 8 8 8  191419.19 t 19.19141 8 290.000.00 1
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Exhibit B-2

Budget

N««a Hampshire Departmant of HsaKh and Human Servfcas

8IM*rfProenRi Nuna: Manetiaaiar Community Haaldi Cantar

Budoat Raquaal (en Cemimintty CoOaberationa la SuanQthan and Praaaiva Famillaa RFP-»l»OPKS-2»«OMMU

Budgat Parted: July 1. 2019-Juna 30. 2020

Una Karn

Total Precram Coal Contractor Shara / Hatch Ftmdac by DHH3 contract share
CHraci tndlract Total Direct htdiraet Total Dfaect

1. Total Saiarywaqaa t  20802.00 8 2.060.20 8 22.662.20 8 8  20.602.00 2.060.20 8
2. Emolevaa DanafM 8  4,120.00 8 412.00 8 4.532.00 8 8  4.120.00
3. CenauBait* S  80,000.00 8 5.000.00 8 55 000 00 8 8  50.000.00
4. Eeuiomant 8 - 8 8 8 8

8 8 8 $ 8 1 8
Raoeir «id UaMananea 8 8 s t 8 1

PuraftaaaCaeraeiatten 8 8 8 s 8 1 8
5. Sueeiaa; 8 8 . 8 I 8 j 8

Educadonal 8  8000.00 8 500.00 8 s.soo.oo 8 8  5,000.00 500 OO 8
Lab 8 8 . 8 $ 8 8
Phamacv 8 8 s 1 8 8
Madteal 8 - 8 8 8 8 8
Offlea 8  800.00 8 50.00 8 550.00 8 8  500,00

8. Traval 8  1.200.00 8 120.00 8 1 320 00 8 8  1.200.00
7. Oceuoancv 8 8 8 8
8. Cunant E^^antaa 8 8 8 8

Tataohona 8 8 - 8 8 .

Pealaoa 8  38.90 8 3.90 8 42.60 8 8  36.90 8
Subacftodona 8 8 - 8 8 8
AudHandlaaal 8 8 8 8
Inaurarca 8 8 • 8 8 8

8  2400000 8 2.400.00 8 26.400.00 8
9. Scftwifa 8  2 00000 8 200.00 8 2.200.00 8 8  2 000.00 8
10. Mart,aiina(Cornnwic«6cna 8  7.17500 8 718.00 8 7883 00 8 8  7 17500
11. SMI EducaHen and Training 8  4000000 « 4 000 00 8 44.000.00 8 8  40.00000 8
12. Subccnifaeta/Aoraamanta (  129,900.00 8 8 129 900 00 8 8 8  129 900.00 8
13. Odiarlaoadflcdaiailamandalotv): 8 8 8 8 8

* 8 8 8
8 8 8 8 8
8 » 8 8 8 8 8 8

TOTAL 8  284.835.90 8 15.484.10 8 8 8 8 8 264.939.90 8  19.494.10 8 300,600.00
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Exhibit B-3

Budget

New Hampfhira Department ol Health and Human Servtcea

BMdoffPregnm Nemo: Manchester Community Health Center

Budget Regueet (or: Community CoKibentiort* to Strongthen and (>toaefve FamUlea RFP-20igOPKS-23^0UMU
(nmttffP)

Budget Period: July 1.2020. June 30.2021

Tota Prporam Coat Contractor Share f Match

1

1

3

Une Kem Direct indlreci Total Diraet Indlreci Total Oireet
1. Total SatarvMVsoea t  21.221.00 3 2.122.00 3 23 343.00 3 3  21221.00 3 2.122.00
2. Employee Benefits 3  4245.00 3 424.00 3 4.609.00 3 3  4245.00 3
3. ConsullatSa 3  40.000.00 3 4.000.00 3 44.000.00 3 3  40.000.00 3
4. Equlpmant: 3 3 . 3 3 3

ReiM 3 3 3 3 3
Repair and Mainienence 3 3 3 3 j 3
PfiilietelPeorecletion 3 3 3 3 1 3

S. SuDoies: 3 3 . 3 3 { 3
Edueatiortal 3  4290.00 3 425.00 3 4.675.00 3 3  4.250.00 3 425.00
Lab 3 3 . 3 3 1 3
Pharmacy 3 3 3 3 ) 3
Medeal 3 3 . 3 3 ) 3 1

Office 3  500.00 3 50.00 3 550.00 3 3  500.00 3
6. Travel 3  1 20000 3 120.00 3 1.320.00 3 3  1.200.00 3 120.00
7. Oceuoency 3 3 . 3 1 3
8. Current Entsnaes 3 3 3 1 3 1

Teleghene 3 3 . 3 ) 3 . }

Poateoe 3  45.50 3 4.50 3 50.00 3 3  45.50 3
Subeeriptiena 3 3 . 3 3
Auffit and Legal 3 3 ) 3 3 1

Inaurance 3 3 . 3 1 3 3 . I

BcerOEtvenaea 3  24,000.00 3 2.400.00 3 20 400.00 3 3  24.000.00 3
9. Goftwere 3  2.000.00 3 200.00 3 2200.00 3 3  2.000 OO 3
10. MarfcetinglCommunieatlona 3  7 17500 3 716.00 7.693.00 3 3  7.175.0O 716.00
11. Stall Education and Treinbig 3  90000.00 3 5.000.00 3 55 000 00 3 3  so.ooo.m
12. Subeontreeta/Aareemerui 3  129 000.00 3 • 3 129.900.00 3 3 3  12990000 3
13. Other (specific detelbmandeiervl: 3 3 $ 3 3

3 3 s 3 3 3 j

3 » 3 $ 3 3 3 j

s 3 • * 3 3 3 t

TOTAL 3  284.533.90 3 1S.48).50 3 300.000.00 3 3 3 3  234.933.50 3 15.433.50 3  300.000.001
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of sen/ices hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate

which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in^

excess of costs; . . i
Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records; books, records, documents and other.data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records; Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close ofthe
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information In connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration ofthe services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian. \Ai^
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowing
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by thie Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If, upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwithout
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationalorigin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: OHMS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance Is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS; Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
In Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, a!) obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account{s) Identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 {Pub. L 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

(
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

Name:
Title:

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free
Workplace Requirements
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs {indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

kLjii
latel Tiame:Datel ' • >3ame':
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended." "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and ^
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property:

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in ail solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

tie
Pksy} ickAhf 61^
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 {42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or
debarment.
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in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name:

vS
Name;

Title:

6/27/14

Rev. 10/21/14
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

—  NSKrrx"., —

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Vendor Initials _
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Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaarecation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. C-
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1. "Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart G, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not othenwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the

HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health

Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor Initials,
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Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObllQations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor Initials
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be govemed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to fonwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the retum or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entltv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation{s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

0. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not othenwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. » . ̂
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions {P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services jj/l/jyiuIaJLoi (M
St

i iI{a
hlarn^f the Vendor y

Signature of Authorized Representative SignaCre 6f Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative NaraeVf Authorized f^presentative

[jLud
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

Date Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency

4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name:

Date Name:

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Vendor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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FORMA

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

CU/DHHS/110713
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and

Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvpted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will

structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and wjll provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless othenwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any darhage or toss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Inforrriation, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is

physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and corhpliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, If so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary ofState of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that MANCHESTER COMMUNITY

HEALTH CENTER is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 07,

1992. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business (D: 175115

Certificate Number 0004513507

SI

u.

o

A

4"

[N TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this lOlh day of May A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

Kathleen Davidson

(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Officer of Manchester Community Health Center
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duty adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on: June 4'^. 2019
(Date)

do hereby certify that:

RESOLVED: That the President/CEO

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 4th day of June .2019

(Date Amendment Signed)

4. Kris McCracken

(Name of Contract Signatory)
.is the duly elected President/CE0 of the Agency

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of /-{/ //s

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

K.IUBy

of Contrac/ Sic natory)

(Signature ted Officer)the

ft—

y  day of JuaJc^ 20_(9 ,

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

fhi^a^ PuSlic73ustice^o7the^ace)
(NOTARY StiAL)

/ /:Cbrnhi'SSicn Expires: /^ // 7

KURT LAWLOR-JONES, Notary Public
State of New Hampshire

My Commission Expires October 17, 2023

NH DHMS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005



MANCCOM-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

JTHAMM

DATE (UIVDO/YYYY)

5/31/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementls).

PRODUCER license # AGR81 SO
Clark Insurance
One Sundial Ave Suite 302N
Manchester, NH 03103

wc.'no. Exti: (603) 622-2855 fwc. Not:(603) 622-2854
lAk^ss- info@clarklnsurance.com

INSURERISI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICF

INSURER A: Selective Insurance Company of the Southeast 39928

INSURED

Manchester Community Health Center MCHC
145 Hollls Street

Manchester, NH 03101

INSURER B; AIX SDeclaltv Insurance Co 12833

INSURER C:

INSURER D ;

INSURER E; .

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
AODL
INSD

SUBR
WVD POUCY NUMBER UMITS

A COMMERCIAL GE.NERAL UABIUTY

)E 1 X 1 OCCUR S 2291045 11/1/2018 11/1/2019

EACH OCCURRENCE
^  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC DAMAGE TO RENTED s  300,000

MED EXP 'Anv one nertonl
s  10,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY
,  1,000,000

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE
,  3,000,000

POLICY 1 1 ® [)^ LOG
OTHER:

PRODUCTS. COMP/OP AGG
s  3,000,000

s

A AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

S 2291045 11/1/2018 11/1/2019

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT J  1,000,000

ANY AUTO

:heduled
ITOS

m^m

BODILY INJURY fPer owtonl s
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

ONLY

X sc
AL BODILY INJURY (Per eccldentl $

NC
AL

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per eccidentT s

S

A Y UMBRELLA UAB

' EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE S 2291045 11/1/2018 11/1/2019

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  4,000,000

AGGREGATE
s  4,000,000

DED X RETENTIONS 0 s

A WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABILITY ^^
ANY PRCPRIETOR/PARTNER^XECUTIVE rTTT

Lnj
If VM. dttcfiba undw
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

WC 9057737 11/1/2018 11/1/2019

y PER OTH-
^ STATIITF FR

E.L. EACH ACCIOFNT
j  500,000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
^  500,000

E. L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
j  500,000

B

8

FTCA GAP Liability

FTCA GAP Liability

L1VA515491

L1VA515491

7/1/2018

7/1/2018

7/1/2019

7/1/2019

Per Claim

Aggregate

1,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCAnONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addtttorul Ramarlt* Sch*dul«. may b« attachae t1 mora apact it rtqulrtd)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

New Hampshire Dept of Health & Human Services
Program Specialist IV
Contracts and Procurement Unit

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) ® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



MANCHESTER

COUUKKPty
HEALTH CENTER

MCaCcrn^ VCiuyn/cvnd/C<yre/Vcdue^

KiUiCon/

To improve the health and well-being of our patients and the communities

we serve by leading the effort to eliminate health disparities by

providing exceptional primary and preventive healthcare and support

services which are accessible to all.

VUiOYX/

MCHC will become the provider of choice for comprehensive primary health

care by achieving the triple aim of better health outcomes, better patient
care, and lowered costs through using innovative care models and strong
community partnerships. MCHC will meet our mission by using evidence-based
care that is patient-centered, engages families, removes barriers, and
promotes well-being and healthy lifestyles through patient empowerment and
education.

Core/Vcdue^

We will prompte wellness, provide exceptional care, and offer outstanding

services so that our patients achieve and maintain their best possible

health. We will do this through fostering an environment of respect,

integrity and caring for all stakeholders in our organization.

ADOPTED; 01/28/2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Manchester Community Health Center

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Manchester Community Health Center,
which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related statements of
operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Bangor, ME • Portland, ME • Manchester, NH • Glastonbury, CT • Charleston, VW • Phoenix, AZ
berrydunn.corrt



Board of Directors

Manchester Community Health Center
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Manchester Community Health Center as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the
results of its operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended, in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

i

Portland, Maine

March 29. 2019



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Balance Sheets

June 30, 2018 and 2017

ASSETS

2018 2017

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, less allowance for uncollectible

accounts of $1,219,080 in 2018 and $1,702,394 in 2017
Grants and other receivables

Prepaid expenses

$ 1.045,492

1,842,714
465,850

162.423

$  671,890

2,058,763
942,811

131.702

Total current assets 3,516,479 3,805,166

Investment in limited liability company 22,589 20,298

Property and equipment, net 4.650.347 4.362.418

Total assets £ 8.189.415 $ 8.187.882

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Line of credit

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Current maturities of long-term debt

$ 1,185,000
583,461

1,116,406
53.722

$  810,000
1,057,214
1,059,280

52.316

Total current liabilities 2,938,589 2,978,810

Long-term debt, less current maturities 1.153.279 1.206.475

Total liabilities 4.091.868 4.185.285

Net assets

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

3,392,211

603,978
101.358

3,091,080

810,159

101.358

Total net assets 4.097.547 4.002.597

Total liabilities and net assets S 8.189.415 $ 8.187.882

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Statements of Operations

Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue $ 9,898,890 $ 9,734,445
Provision for bad debts f749.930) f1.687.439)

Net patient service revenue 9,148,960 8,047,006

Grants, contracts and support 7,304,866 7,027,192
Other operating revenue 180,701 109,815
Net assets released from restriction for operations 1.027.841 716.090

Total operating revenue 17.662.368 15.900.103

Operating expenses
Salaries and benefits 13,316,043 12,556,077
Other operating expense 4,314,950 4,579,067
Depreciation 402,532 336,129
Interest expense 91.771 54.071

Total operating expenses 18.125.296 17.525.344

Deficiency of revenue over expenses (462,928) (1,625,241)

Grants for capital acquisition - 69,001
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition 764.059 328.693

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets $ 301,1^ $(1.227.547)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Unrestricted net assets

Deficiency of revenue over expenses
Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets

Temporarily restricted net assets
Contributions

Net assets released from restriction for operations
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition

(Decrease) increase in temporarily restricted net assets

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

$  (462,928) $(1,625,241)
69,001

764.059 328.693

301.131 (1.227.5471

1,585,719
(1.027,841)
(764.0591

(206.1811

94,950

4.002.597

1,273,242
(716,090)
(328.6931

228.459

(999,088)

5.001.685

$ 4.097.547 £ 4.002.597

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $  94,950 $ (999,088)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided

(used) by operating activities
Provision for bad debts 749,930 1.687,439

Depreciation 402,532 336,129

Equity in earnings from limited liability company (2,291) (4.095)

Contributions and grants for long-term purposes (475,001) (726,960)
(Increase) decrease in the following assets

Patient accounts receivable (533,881) (1.690,516)
Grants and other receivables 476,961 (376,416)
Prepaid expenses (30,721) (11,650)

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (152,163) 573,177

Accrued payroll and related expenses 57.126 125.077

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 587.442 (1.086.903)

Cash flows from investing activities
Release of board-designated reserves - 150.000

Capital expenditures (1.012.051) (902.418)

Net cash used by investing activities (1.012.051) (752.418)

Cash flows from financing activities
Contributions and grants for long-term purposes 475,001 726,960

Proceeds from line of credit 450,000 920,000

Payments on line of credit (75,000) (110,000)

Payments on long-term debt (51.790) (50.522)

Net cash provided by financing activities 798.211 1.486.438

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 373,602 (352,883)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 671.890 1.024.773

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1.045.492 $ 671.890

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest $  91,771 $ 54.071

Capital expenditures in accounts payable - 321,590

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

1. Summary of Sianlficant Accounting Policies

Organization

Manchester Community Health Center (the Organization) is a non-stock, not-for-profit corporation
organized in New Hampshire. The Organization is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC)
providing high-quality, comprehensive family oriented primary healthcare services which meet the
needs of a diverse community, regardless of age, ethnicity or income.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a
public charity, the Organization is exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned
in accordance with Its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded
that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles generally requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Eouivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits and petty cash funds.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. In evaluating the collectlbility of patient accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes
its past history and identifies trends for each individual payer. In addition, balances in excess of
one year are 100% reserved. Management regularly reviews data about revenue in evaluating the
sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible accounts. Amounts not collected after all reasonable
collection efforts have been exhausted are applied against the allowance for uncollectible
accounts.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

A reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts follows:

2018 2017

Balance, beginning of year $ 1,702,394 $ 1,391,757
Provision 749,930 1,687,439
Write-offs M.233.2441 n .376.8021

Balance, end of year $ 1.219.080 $ 1.702.394

The decrease in the provision and resulting allowance is due to a decrease in accounts receivable
as a result of improved billing and collection processes.

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. All such amounts are considered collectible.

Investment in Limited Liability Company

The Organization is one of eight partners who each made a capital contribution of $500 to Primary
Health Care Partners. LLC (PHCP) during 2015. The Organization's investment in PHCP is
reported using the equity method.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the
estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset and is computed on the straight-line
method.

Gifts of long-lived assets, such as land, buildings, or equipment, are reported as unrestricted net
assets and excluded from the deficiency of revenue over expenses unless explicit donor
stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit
restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must
be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as temporarily restricted net assets. Absent
explicit continuing donor stipulations, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the
donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets include contributions and grants for which donor-imposed
restrictions have not been met. Assets are released from restrictions as expenditures are made in
line with restrictions called for under the terms of the donor. Restricted grants received for capital
acquisitions are reported as temporarily restricted net assets in the period received, and
expirations of those donor restrictions are reported when the acquired long-lived assets are placed
in service and donor-imposed restrictions are satisfied.

Permanently restricted net assets include net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that
they be maintained permanently by the Organization. Generally, the donors of these assets permit
the Organization to use all or part of the income earned on related investments for general or
specific purposes.

Donor-Restricted Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give are reported
at fair value at the date the gift is unconditionally received. The gifts are reported as either
temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit
the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of operations as "net assets
released from restriction." Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same
year as received are reflected as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying financial
statements.

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payers, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
final settlements are determined.

340B Drug Pricing Program

The Organization, as an FQHC, is eligible to participate in the 340B Drug Pricing Program. The
program requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other identified
entities at a reduced price. The Organization contracts with local pharmacies under this program.
The local pharmacies dispense drugs to eligible patients of the Organization and bill Medicare and
commercial insurances on behalf of the Organization. Reimbursement received by the pharmacies
is remitted to the Organization, less dispensing and administrative fees. Gross revenue generated
from the program is included in patient service revenue. Contracted expenses and drug costs
incurred related to the program are included in other operating expenses.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

Charity Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under Its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than Its established rates. Because the Organization does not
pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net
patient service revenue.

Functional Expenses

The Organization provides various services to residents within Its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows:

2018 2017

Program services $15,680,929 $15,198,514
Administrative and general 2,257,325 2,138,503
Fundralsing 187.042 188.327

Total $18.125.296 $17.525.344

Deficiency of Revenue Over Expenses

The statements of operations reflect the deficiency of revenue over expenses. Changes In
unrestricted net assets which are excluded from the deficiency of revenue over expenses,
consistent with Industry practice. Include contributions of long-lived assets (Including assets
acquired using contributions which, by donor restriction, were to be used for the purposes of
acquiring such assets).

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through March 29, 2019, the date that the financial statements
were available to be Issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for
Inclusion In the financial statements.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

2. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

2018 2017

Land $  81,000 $  81,000
Building and leasehold improvements 5,105,431 4,327,993
Furniture and equipment 1.961.844 1.693.049

Total cost 7,148,275 6,102,042
Less accumulated depreciation 2.502.418 2.099.884

4,645,857 4,002,158
Construction-in-process 4.490 360.260

Property and equipment, net $ 4.650.347 $ 4.362.418

3. Line of Credit

The Organization has a $1,500,000 line of credit demand note with a local banking institution. The
line of credit is collateralized by all assets. The interest rate is LIBOR plus 3.5% {5.53% at June
30. 2018). There was an outstanding balance on the line of credit of $1,185,000 and $810,000 at
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Organization has a formal commitment from the bank dated January 28, 2019 to refinance
$500,000 of the outstanding balance of the line of credit in conjunction with the refinancing of the
Organization's mortgage discussed in Note 4. The maximum borrowing on the line of credit will be
reduced to $1,000,000 with an established pay-down plan on the balance.

4. Lonq-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

Note payable, with a local bank (see terms below)

Note payable. New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities
Authority (NHHEFA), payable in monthly installments of $513,
including interest at 1.00%, due July 2020, collateralized by
all business assets

Total long-term debt
Less current maturities

Long-term debt, less current maturities

2018 2017

$ 1,194,313 $ 1,240,109

12.688

1,207,001
53.722

18.682

1,258,791

52.316

$ 1.153.279 $ 1.206.475
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2018 and 2017

The Organization has a promissory note with Citizens Bank, N. A. (Citizens) for the purchase of
the medical and office facility in Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is collateralized by the real
estate. The note has a balloon payment due December 1, 2018 which previously was paid based
on an amortization rate of 25 years. The note bears interest at a variable interest rate adjusted
annually on July 1 based on the Organization's achievement of two operating performance
milestones (2.8667% at June 30, 2018). NHHEFA is participating in the lending for 30% of the
promissory note. Under the NHHEFA program, the interest rate on that portion is approximately
30% of the interest rate charged by Citizens.

The Organization is required to meet an annual minimum working capital and debt service
coverage as defined in the loan agreement with Citizens. In the event of default, Citizens has the
option to terminate the agreement and immediately request payment of the outstanding debt
without notice of any kind to the Organization. The Organization failed to meet the minimum
working capital requirement at June 30, 2018 and received a one-time waiver of default from
Citizens.

As discussed in Note 3, the Organization has formal commitment from Citizens dated January 28,
2019 to refinance the debt up to $1,670,000, which includes a $500,000 paydown on the line of
credit. NHHEFA will continue to participate in the lending for up to $450,000. Payments of principal
and interest will be based on a 25 year amortization schedule with a balloon payment at the
Organization's option of 5, 7, or 10 years from closing. The interest rate will be fixed just prior to
closing, based on Citizens' cost of funds plus a spread of 90 to 125 basis points, depending on the
term option chosen.

5. Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily and permanently restricted net assets consisted of the following as of June 30:

2018 2017

Temporarily restricted
Program services $ 365,301 $ 148,927
Child health services 162,045 269,272
Capital improvements 76.632 391.960

Total $ 603.978 $ 810.159

Permanently restricted

Working capital $ 101.358 $ 101.358
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2018 and 2017

6. Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue follows:

2018 2017

Gross charges $17,126,053 $16,357,934
340B pharmacy revenue 1.343.871 919.437

Total gross revenue 18,469,924 17,277,371

Contractual adjustments (6,929,944) (6,088,033)
Sliding fee scale discounts (1.641.090) (1.454.893)

Total patient service revenue $ 9,898,890 $ 9,734,445

Revenue from the Medicaid and Medicare programs accounted for approximately 51% and 9%,
respectively, of the Organization's gross patient service revenue for the year ended June 30, 2018
and 52% and 9%, respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2017. Laws and regulations governing
the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation. The Organization
believes that it is in compliance with all laws and regulations. Compliance with such laws and
regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as significant
regulatory action including fines, penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid
programs. Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently
determined to be recoverable or payable are included in patient service revenue in the year that
such amounts become known.

A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:

Medicare

The Organization is reimbursed for the medical care of qualified patients on a prospective basis,
with retroactive settlements related to vaccine costs only. The prospective payment is based on a
geographically-adjusted rate determined by Federal guidelines. Overall, reimbursement is subject
to a maximum allowable rate per visit. The Organization's Medicare cost reports have been
audited by the Medicare administrative contractor through June 30, 2016.

Medicaid and Other Pavers

The Organization also has entered into payment agreements with Medicaid and certain
commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations and preferred provider
organizations. The basis for payment to the Organization under these agreements includes
prospectively-determined rates per visit, discounts from established charges, and capitated
arrangements for primary care services on a per member, per month basis.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. The Organization estimates the costs
associated with providing charity care by calculating the ratio of total cost to total charges and then
multiplying that ratio by the gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to
patients eligible for free care. The estimated cost of providing services to patients under the
Organization charity care policy amounted to $1,882,644 and $1,620,083 for the years ended June
30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Organization is able to provide these services with a corriponent of funds received through
local community support and federal and state grants.

7. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) that
covers substantially all employees. The Organization contributed $338,779 and $289,444 for the
years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

8. Concentration of Risk

The Organization has cash deposits in major financial institutions which exceed federal depository
insurance limits. The financial institutions have a strong credit rating and management believes the
credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. Following is a summary of accounts
receivable, by funding source, at June 30:

2018 2017

Medicare 13 % 14 %

Medicaid 23 % 42 %

Other 44%

100 % 100 %

The Organization receives a significant amount of grants from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS). As with all government funding, these grants are subject to reduction or
termination in future years. For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, grants from DHHS
(including both direct awards and awards passed through other organizations) represented
approximately 76% and 79%, respectively, of grants, contracts and support revenue.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

9. Commitments and Contingencies

Medical Malpractice Insurance

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of the year ended
June 30, 2018, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of
management, will be settled for amounts in excess of both FTCA and additional medical
malpractice insurance coverage, nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents which require
loss accrual. The Organization intends to renew the additional medical malpractice insurance
coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available.

Leases

The Organization leases office space and certain other office equipment under noncancelable
operating leases. Future minimum lease payments under these leases are:

2019 $ 148,927
2020 101,315
2021 83,318
2022 74,276
2023 75.465
Thereafter 57.275

Total $ 540.576

Rent expenses amounted to $241,375 and $269,771 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.
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LARA K. QUIROGA, M.ED.

Expertise Highlights

Early Care & Education Program Administration Children and Families Living in Poverty Group Faalitation
Early Childhood Policy Children with Challenging Behaviors Quality Improvement Processes
Early Childhood Curriculum & Environmental Design Professional Development Project Management

Professional Experience
MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER- MANCHESTER. NH 2013 - present
Director of Strategic Inttiatives for Children

• Provide leadership in efforts to improve young child wellness and local service infrastructure, induding implementing evidence-teased and promising practices and
fadlitating the estateiishment of interagency collatxerations with other community-based, child- and family-serving public agendes

• Responsible for oversight of local system of care activities to improve outcomes for young children through improved collaboration, integration, and infrastructure
development, induding the Adverse Childhood Experiences Response Team (ACERT) in collaboration with Manchester Police Department and YWCA NH

" Guide the development and implementation of the Strategic Plan and coordinate data and evaluation for performance reporting and evaluation purposes

Protect t-AUNCH Director

" Lead all Project LAUNCH (Unking Actions for Unmet Needs in Children's Health) activities vrithin the locally-funded community and ensure their effective and
effident service delivery, induding improving a system of developmental screening, enhanced home visiting, mental health consultation in early care and
education, integration of behavioral health into primary care, and parenUng skills training

" Convene and lead a Local Coundl on Young Child Wellness to develop and implement a Strategic Ptan
" Provide leadership in all local facets of young child wellness efforts and fadlitate efforts to improve local infrastrudure
" Guide the development and implementation of the Strategic Plan and coordinate data and evaluation for performance reporting and evaluation purposes
• Promote the Projed LAUNCH mission through upholding standards of cullurai competence, system of care prindples, family invotvement. and integrative pradices

TUFTS UNIVERSITY- MEDFORD, MA 2011 - 2013
Communications and Project Administrator Office of the President

• Conceptualize and manage implementation of a coordinated system of communications for the university's strategic initiatives, including diversity, sustainability,
administrative effediveness, strategic planning, and capital planning

• Support various committees led by the President and Chief of Staff, including the President's Council on Diversity and Council on Campus Sustainability
" Coordinate with the Office of the Provost regarding strategic plan development aligned to the university's mission and vision and initiatives of the President's Office
" Collaborate with the Office of Institutional Research to gather and analyze data to be used as an evidence base for a range of on-going and one-time projeds
" Write and disseminate a broad range of communications and correspondence induding reports, announcements, and messages to the Tufts community
• Manage content on the President's Office website

Accreditation Coordinator: Office of Institutional Research and Evaluation

' Provide support to the chair of the NEASC steering committee and assist the chairs of the 11 standard working groups in facilitating meetings and writing reports
' Serve as a resource for information on the accreditation process and the development of a comprehensive learning outcomes assessment system
" Coordinate and disseminate information to all individuals, committees, and agendes involved with the accreditation process
• Create, manage, organize, and update an accreditation wiki for internal university use and a virtual workroom for visiting accreditation team
" Manage and schedule the accreditation site visit
" Coordinate the (reparation of and edit Tufts' accreditation self-study

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY- MANCHESTER. NH 2007 - 2011
Communitv Outreach Coordinator: School of Education

' Support collaboration with community partners, state organizations, and accrediting agencies
• Develop and assist in offering outreach programs and events supporting the professional development of students, teachers, parents, and faculty/staff
• Assist in School of Education's reaccreditation preparation through the NH Department of Education
" Serve as writer and content editor for the university semi-annual magazine and editor of School of Education monthly newsletter
" Coordinate with the Offices of Admissions and Transfer Admissions to streamline activities for prospective students, including open house and orientation events
' Developed two university-vride articulation agreements, Induding dual admission protocol and transfer credit equivalents, with local community colleges

Adjunct Facuftv: School of Education and College of Online and Continulna Education

■  [)evelop syllabus for course offering, induding required reading and writing assignments, quizzes, exams, observations, and dass content for undergraduate and
graduate level coursework in the field of Child Development and Early Childhood Education
□ Administration of Child Development Programs o Cognitive Development of Young Children a Infants and Toddlers
□ Behavior Theory and Practice a Family and Culture □ Language and Cognitive Development
□ Child Assessment o Theories of Play □ Psychosodal Development

MANCHESTER COMMUNITY COLLEGE- MANCHESTER, NH 2006 - 2008
Adjunct Faculty: Early Childhood Education Deoartment
" Teach undergraduate level coursework in the field of Early Childhood Education

□ ECE100 Eariy Child Growths Development
□ ECE116 Child Healffi, Safety, & Nutrition
□ ECE 250 Childcare Administration and Management



VNA CHILD CARE AND FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER- MANCHESTER. NH 2001 ■ 2007
Program Manager Education and ProfessioMi Development

" Supervise over 50 staff and monitor classrooms to ensure provision of developmentally appropriate care and education to approximately 200 cfiildren and families
• Coordinate and provide professional development and training for over 50 teacfiing st^
• Provide evaluadon and assistance to teachers who care for children with trehavloral issues, including involvement on Universal, Targeted, and Intensive PBIS

Teams to develop school-wide l^ehavior expectations and individualized trehavior intervention plans teased on functional behavioral assessment
• Uaise with representatives from the Manchester School District to ensure consistent implementation of the Early Reading First program, including Curiosity Comer

curriculum, PPVT-4 and PALS-PreK assessments, and professional development
• Coordinate with local school district to ensure children with special needs receive services and in accordance with lEP/IFSP activities/goals
■  Increase capacity for and design quality initiatives including literacy, math, science, gross motor, and language arts
" Monitor day to day operational expenditures and discrepancies and provide input into annual budget planning

HEAD START/EARLY HEAD START, SOUTHERN NH SERVICES. INC. - MANCHESTER, NH f999 - 200f
Systems Coordinator

" Develop and implement community collaborations and agreements
" Monitor a multi-million dollar budget and assist In development and writing of federal grant proposals
" CollatxDrate with Management Team to revise various program systems
• Plan and coordinate monthly Parent Policy Committee meetings

Center Director

■ Responsible for daily operations, management, and quality child care of the center
• Supervise teaching and family service staff
• Design and implement staf training
" Assist in recruitment of eligible families in community for program enrollment

Teacher

■ Caregiver In Head Start and Early Head Start programs
" Plan and implement developmentally appropriate curriculum
• Home visit with families enrolled in program

■ Select and order equipment for model infant/toddler and preschool classrooms

KIDS CARROUSEL - MANCHESTER, NH 1998 • f999
Teacher

" Plan and implement daily schedule and lesson plans
" Supervise two assistants with responsibility for sixteen toddlers
' Develop job description for Assistant Teacher position

Selected Trainer/Consultant Work

SERESC PRESCHOOL TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE NETWORK- BEDFORD, NH 2009 ■ 2010
GROW, LEARN. & PLAY AT MOORE CENTER SERVICES, INC. - MANCHESTER, NH 2009
VNA CHILD CARE AND FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER- MANCHESTER, NH 2007 ■ 2010

EASTERSEALS CHILD DEVELOPMENT & FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER- MANCHESTER, NH 2014 - 2017

Education

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY- MANCHESTER. NH
Master of Education In Child Development with a concentration In Administration, 2007
Thesis: The Influence of Teacher Education Level on Early Childhood Education Program Quality

GRANITE STATE COLLEGE- MANCHESTER, NH
Bachelor of Science in Early Childhood Education Administration, 2004

Professional Summary
AWARDS

" Henry Morgan Award (achievement in professional development and commitment to improving the quality of care and education in NH)
■ 2015,2016, and 2018 NH Early teaming Champion Award

SELECTED BOARDS, COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS, AND ACTIVITIES
• Char of NH Children's Trust Board of Directors (present; Board member since 2011)
• Vice Chair of Maichester Community Resource Center Board of Directors (2018-present)
■ Member of Manchester Family Justice Center Board (2018^)resent)
" Co-Chair of Spark NH Policy Committee (2017-2018)
■ Presenter at the Zero to Three National Training Institute (2016)
• Presenter at the Pyramid Model Consortium National Training Institute on Effective Practices: Addressing Challenging Behavior (2016,2018)
■ Presenter at the NAEYC Annual Conference (2008,2009,2010) and I^EYC Professional Development Institute (2010)
■ Mentor in the State of NH Child Development Bureau Trainer Development Program (2008- 2009)



Manchester Community Health Center

Key Personnel

Budget Request for: Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families RFP-2019-DPHS-23-COMMU

Budget Period: March S, 2019 - June 30, 2019

% Paid from this Amount Paid from

Name Job Title Salary Contract this Contract
Lara Quiroga Director of Strategiclnitlatlves for Children $79,995.80 35% $ 9,154.00



Manchester Community Health Center

Key Personnel

Budget Request for: Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families RFP-2019-DPHS-23-COMMU

Budget Period: July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020

% Paid from this Amount Paid from

Name Job Title Salary Contract this Contract
Lara Quiroga Director of Strategic Initiatives for Children $81,196.75 35% $ 20,602.00



Manchester Community Health Center

Key Personnel

Budget Request for: Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families RFP-2019-DPHS-23-COMMU

Budget Period: July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021

% Paid from this Amount Paid from

Name Job Title Salary Contract this Contract
Lara Quiroga Director of Strategiclnltiatives for Children $82,414.70 35% $ 21,221.00
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'",*^1""'=!'^,^" >>«0"« P"Wic upon submission to Govomorond^ccutlyc CoujKil for approval. Any mformailon that is private, conndcniiol or propriciaiy must

be clearly (dentifled to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.
_ ^ AGREEMENTThe State ofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 Stale Agency Nome
NH Oepartment of Health and Human Services

1.3 Contractor Nome
Lakes Region Community Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.4 Contractor Address
719 North Main Street, Laconla, NH 03246

1.6 Account Number B/Aa^
0s.09549(>.9020i0.7047l)000^fjm
05-095-042-421010-2958-0000

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number

603-524-8811

1.7 Completion Dole

June 30,2021
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

l.il Contractor Signature

1.8 Price Limitation

S 800,000

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603.271-9631

1,1.12

Pmideac&CEO ,

1.13 Acknowlcdgcmcnl: Stale of .County of

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Jtatli-e laPilm

JJlllUuy. (h- HdJiMjiA^
1.13J ***""•*•"^"^jlf'nfMntnn'nr hnlin nfilii pBum

1.14 StateAgcgc^ySignatu^ I.I3 Name and nUeofSiate Agency Signatory
.  Date: rOotrtli D\fi,vrftl£ Cilf tt\1.16 Approval by thcRH^e^rnem of AdtninistTBlioriDivisicMj of Personnel (ifappii^S^)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Anomey General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifappficabie)

on;

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Execuiive Council (Ifapf^(cable) ~
By: On:

Page I of4



FORM NUMBER F-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject; RfP-2019-DPHS-23-COMMU-01 Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Lakes Region Community Services
1.4 Contractor Address

719 North Main Street, Laconia, NH 03246

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-524-8811

1.6 Account Number

05-095-042-421010-2958-0000

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2021

1.8 Price Limitation

$ 800,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Signatory

President & (TTO.

ComiUNITY

1 13 Acknowledgement: State of (-.j .County of

On r^(\\J 301 ZOi^ before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to bi the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature ofNotary Public or Justice oftl

1.13.2 Name and Title ofNotary or Jtwtiee of tho Poaco aiEUEV A. KBiaiEn, Notary p|]^
8tat9 of New Hamprtyre

1% Oonvnbelon Bqaboa July 19,2022
1.14 State Agency Signatu

Date

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approv^H^y the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By: " I/I/I,. IT . On:

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block l.l ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
FYHTRIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws,
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days afler giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifleen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHEBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $ 1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for
any payments for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature
and funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 biennia.

1.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.5. The Contractor shall provide contracted services to families living in the
Winnipesaukee Regional Public Health Network, which includes:

1.5.1. Alton.

1.5.2. Bamstead.

1.5.3. Belmont.

1.5.4. Center Harbor.

1.5.5. Danbury.

1.5.6. Franklin.

1.5.7. Gilford

1.5.8. Gilmanton.

1.5.9. Hill

1.5.10. Meredith.

1.5.11. New Hampton.

1.5.12. Northfield.

1.5.13. Laconia.

1.5.14. Sanbornton.

1.5.15. Tilton.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall develop Community Implementation Teams (CITs), which
may include, but are not limited to:

Lakes Region Community Services Exhibit A Contractor Initic
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

Exhibit A

2.1.1. Evidence-based prevention programs, including programs with
existing Department supported services.

2.1.2. Court diversion and family court programs.

2.1.3. Programs that offer alternative dispositions for juveniles.

2.1.4. Community agencies and providers who serve families with children
up to eight years of age.

2.1.5. Public Health Networks.

2.1.6. Family Resource Centers.

2.1.7. Integrated Delivery Networks.

2.1.8. DHHS District Offices

2.2. The Contractor shall create, coordinate, administer and manage Community
Implementations Teams (CIT) that:

2.2.1. Work with the Evaluator and DHHS to complete and submit a
practice plan and a federal project plan. Participate in Plan Do Study
Act - Revise (PDSA-R) cycles to increase saturation and scale of
evidence-based prevention practices.

2.2.2. Plan, coordinate, and implement Boundary Spanning Leadership

2.2.3. Hire a Community Implementation Team Coordinator.

2.2.4. Purchase supporting materials

2.2.5. Provide on-site face-to-face training to providers.

2.3. The Contractor shall utilize the results of the environmental scan and the needs
assessment (Section 2.9) in conjunction with Department input, to provide
planning, technical assistance, and face-to-face training on targeted topics, as
determined by the Department, which may include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. Evidence-based and/or evidence-informed parental education on:

2.3.1.1. Current impact of adverse childhood experiences

2.3.1.2. Baseline orfoundational understanding of toxic stress levels
for families in the community and in the CIT sites.

2.3.1.3. Policies and programs that promote, serve and return
knowledge, behaviors and practices between parents and
children that:

2.3.1.3.1. Prevent abuse and neglect.

2.3.1.3.2. Strengthen positive parenting.

2.3.1.4. Programs that will assist families with identifying and
addressing risk factors that could lead to contact with the
child welfare system.

2.3.1.5. Delivery of trauma-informed care across the continuum for
individuals and families with children up to 8 years of age.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

Exhibit A

2.3.1.6. Strategies that support the needs of families who have had
involvement with the Division for Children, Youth and
Families resulting in unfounded allegation of abuse or
neglect with:

2.3.1.6.1. Reasonable concern.

2.3.1.6.2. Parental substance use.

2.3.1.6.3. Discovery of economic or social challenges.

2.3.1.6.4. Strategies for working with children impacted
by familial substance use disorder.

2.3.1.6.5. Training and strategies for supporting the
needs of young children and families from
various cultures and languages.

2.3.1.6.6. Training, coaching and implementation of
Boundary Spanning Leadership (BSL)
strategies.

2.4. The Contractor shall coordinate trainings with a variety of agencies, including
other CITs, to ensure trainings are developed, planned and aligned with
evidence-based services that are culturally and linguistically competent and
most appropriate for the target audience needs.

2.5. Contractor shall ensure that all training includes instruction and guidance
relating to safeguarding confidentiality of individually identifiable or protected
health information, as required by state or federal law or regulations.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure services and supports offered to families in their
respective areas of service complement existing state programs.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure a CIT Coordinator is assigned job duties that
include, but are not limited to:

2.7.1. Working with team members to draft meeting agendas and meeting
notes.

2.7.2. Conducting local needs assessments.

2.7.3. Leading program-planning efforts.

2.7.4. Identifying and engaging new and existing community partners to
plan and strategize implementation.

2.7.5. Representing the Contractor at statewide meetings.

2.7.6. Leading the development of a Practice Profile as it relates to
evaluation and service provision.

2.7.7. Facilitating, drafting, and finalizing CIT project work plan, timeline,
and logic model to align with DHHS project logic model and timeline.

2.7.8. Coordinating CIT data definition establishment and data collection
according to state and federal regulations.

2.6. The Contractor shall offer parenting education and economic support services
utilizing evidence-based strategies that align with the Administration for
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

Exhibit A

Children and Families (ACF) child abuse and neglect strategies including, but
not limited to strengthening protective factors, ensuring the services are
accessible, available to, and designed to target a diverse population, which
includes, but Is not limited to:

2.8.1. Pregnant or parenting individuals.

2.8.2. Individuals and all family types with children up to eight (8) years of
age.

2.8.3. Caregivers, professionals, foster parents, grandparents.

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure the CIT conducts a needs
assessment/environmental scan to detennine the training needs of the
organization that provide services to families. The Contractor shall ensure the
CIT is able to:

2.9.1. Determine the extent to which professionals require training in:

2.9.1.1. Adverse childhood experiences.

2.9.1.2. Toxic stress.

2.9.1.3. Trauma-informed care.

2.9.1.4. Substance use disorders (SUD).

2.9.2. Measure respondent capacity to identify and address risk factors
among family members that could result in contact with the child
welfare system.

2.9.3. Determine respondent ability to address the needs of young children
and families from various cultures and languages.

2.9.4. Inquire about training in particular evidence-based curricula.

2.10. The Contractor shall define strengths and gaps among service providers and
shall identify needs for training upon the completion and evaluation of a survey.

2.11. The Contractor shall develop a roster of training opportunities for professionals
and parents that utilized evidence-based practices and programming with input
from the CIT and working groups.

2.12. The Contractor shall enlist the subject-matter expertise of CIT members and
other community partners to host training sessions that ensure accommodates
for the entire region. The Contractor shall:

2.12.1. Maintain a record of all trainers and ensure the trainers are qualified
to teach their respective courses.

2.12.2. Ensure that any education programs collecting PHI that are
delivered on-line or on a website meet NH DolT requirements.

2.12.3. Provide all materials, equipment, and physical space, as well as,
logistical and staff support for the services and prevention and
education programs delivered.

2.13. The Contractor shall ensure evidence-based, culturally and linguistically
competent, prevention-focused parental assistance programs are available
within the communities (Section 1.5) and are designed to:

Lakes Region Community Services Exhibit A Contractor Initial!

RFP-2019-DPHS-23-COMMU-01 Page4cf8 Date 5)3o|/9



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

Exhibit A

2.13.1. Reduce child maltreatment.

2.13.2. Improve parent-child interactions.

2.13.3. Improve skills to regulate behavior and cope adaptively.

2.13.4. Improve coordination of services and referrals for young families.

2.14. The Contractor shall ensure a variety of prevention services are available to
parents of children up to eight (8) years of age, which may include, but are not
limited to:

t

2.14.1. Home visiting.

2.14.2. Parent education.

2.14.3. Family support sen/ices, including respite or crisis care.

2.15. The Contractor shall integrate the Five Protective Factors into the prevention
services to promote healthy development and well-being of children through:

2.15.1. Parental resilience.

2.15.2. Knowledge of parenting and child development.

2.15.3. Social connections.

2.15.4. Concrete supports in times of need.

2.15.5. Social and emotional competence.

2.16. The Contractor shall promote prevention and service programs through
outreach and marketing in order to increase parent and community awareness
of services maximizing:

2.16.1. Attendance to events for families with children up to eight (8) years
of age.

2.16.2. Attendance to professional development opportunities.

2.16.3. Awareness of community resources available In the state, region,
and nationally.

2.17. The Contractor shall ensure professionals are trained to support, advise, and
guide families by focusing on prevention and elimination of child abuse and
neglect by training providers on:

2.17.1. Period of Purple Crying:

2.17.2. Strengthening Families Approach.

2.18. The Contractor shall utilize its current relationships in the community to
continue improving coordination of services and referrals.

2.19. The Contractor shall have a minimum of one representative acceptable to the
Department physically present at local and regional meetings to provide
opportunities to build credibility and likeability among other providers in order
to ensure local and regional agencies are confident referring clients for support
and services.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families

Exhibit A

2.20. The Contractor shall implement a Community Outreach and Marketing plan
that ensures families throughout the region are aware of parental assistance
programs through mediums that include, but are not limited to:

2.20.1. Social Media - The Contractor shall develop posts that promote
evidence based parent support programs to target consumers and
providers.

2.20.2. Traditional Media - The Contractor shall develop press releases
announcing grant, programs, special events, inserts in calendar
listings.

2.20.3. Website and Email - The Contractor shall create content to promote
programs on the website, blogs, and email distribution list.

2.20.4. Grassroots Outreach - The Contractor shall develop flyers and
submit to the Department for approval, upon approval the flyers shall
be distributed and posted at community-based locations. The flyers
shall give credit to the Department for the funding.

2.20.5. Networking - The Contractor shall partner with community-based
providers to promote programs through their social media channels,
websites, email lists and program recipients.

2.21. The Contractor shall ensure ongoing Implementation efforts which may
include, but are not limited to:

2.21.1. Tracking performance measures specific to the CIT multi-sectoral
interventions.

2.21.2. PDSA-R cycles for quality improvement.

2.21.3. Collecting and participating in evaluation activities Intended to result
in:

2.21.3.1. Increase of effectiveness of population based prevention.

2.21.3.2. Increase In protective factors.

2.21.3.3. Reduction in child maltreatment reports.

3. DATA TRACKING

3.1. The Contractor shall maintain an Outcome Tracking System, as approved by
the Department, which shall be implemented during the second year of the
resulting contract.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Outcome Tracking System is utilized to
capture local performance metrics consistent with targeted prevention efforts
determined through the comprehensive planning process during the first year
of contracted services. The Contractor shall:

3.2.1. Provide a fully managed Information Technology (IT) department to
that Includes, but is not limited to:

3.2.1.1. Dedicated response team.

3.2.1.2. Cybersecurity;

Lakes Region Community Sen/ices Exhibit A Contractor InitiaW
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit A

3.2.1.3. Dedicated response team with knowledge of state and
federal privacy laws;

3.2.2. Participate in . Plan Do Study Act -Revise (PDSA-R) cycles to
increase saturation and scale of evidence-based prevention
practice.

3.2.3. Disseminate and review data at regular intervals with community
partners for continuous quality improvement efforts, PDSA-R cycles,
and data-based decision efforts.

3.2.4. Track local data and monitor process and outcome indicators
involved in the BSL method and CIT implementation.

3.2.5. Invite the evaluation team to attend CIT meetings in order to provide
training on the importance of the evaluation, specifics on data
collection and reporting.

3.3. The Contractor shall develop plans to share non-personally identifiable data
with the Department that includes, but is not limited to:

3.3.1. Pre-defined regional data definitions.

3.3.2. Measures of success.

3.3.3. Indicators of success to inform shared outcome metrics.

3.3.4. Personal characteristics and experiences of participants.

3.4. The Contractor shall work collaboratively under the direction of the
Department, with the State-identified Evaluation Contractor. This work shall
include, but is not limited to:

3.4.1. Facilitating cross-system data definition processes and managing a
shared-outcomes defining process and outcomes tracking system
which shall include, but is not limited to:

3.4.1.1. Identification of indicators of success to inform shared

outcome metrics within CIT.

3.4.1.2. Personal characteristics, challenges, barriers, and
experiences of parent and community organization
participants.

3.4.1.3. Sharing of pre-defined regional data definitions.

3.4.1.4. Establishment of shared measures of success.

3.4.1.5. Establishment and implementation of data collection, data
sharing agreements, security, and monitoring procedures
standards, consistent with all state and federal laws and
regulations relating to confidentiality, privacy and
information security.

3.4.1.6. Coordination of local data tracking and monitoring of
process and outcome indicators involved in the Boundary
Spanning Leadership (BSL) method and CIT
implementation.

Lakes Region Communily Sen/ices Exhibit A Contractor Initi^
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3.4.1.7. Participate in Data Work Group Committee to contribute
feedback to the design and development of the Outcome
Tracking System. This includes, but is not limited to:

3.4.1.8. Participation in outcomes tracking system training and
technical assistance.

3.4.1.9. Submission of Outcome Tracking System data at regularly
defined intervals for purpose of the program evaluation.

3.4.2. Explore, incorporate and document concepts, methods, population
and performance-based data and tools that make cross-sectoral
work more successful and Increase the value of collective
leadership.

3.4.3. Conduct a needs assessment/environmental scan of: services, CIT
child-abuse neglect prevention focus evidence-based practices,
training and technical assistance needs of community providers.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall submit annual and interim reports on process and
outcome measures for each area under study for quality Improvement and
recommendations. No personally identifiable data shall be included in these
reports.

4.2. The Contractor, In conjunction with the CIT, shall complete and submit a
Practice Plan no later than ninety (90) days after the contract effective date.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of 90% of its CIT members participate
in BSL training.

5.2. The Contractor shall track two (2) phases of performance measurement:

5.2.1. Year 1: Performance Measures for Planning Period, which includes,
but is not limited to:

5.2.1.1. Every six (6) months, 90% of CIT membership will
participate in BSL training workshops and evaluation
activities.

5.2.1.2. Every six (6) months, 90% of CIT membership will
participate In evaluation baseline and measurement studies
such as surveys focus groups and/or in-depth interviews, as
appropriate to project activities.

5.2.1.3. CIT teams shall attend 90% of coaching sessions.

5.2.2. Year 2: The Contractor shall work with the Department to set
performance measures for Year 2, at the conclusion of Year 1.

5.3. The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan for any
performance measure not achieved to the Department.

Lakes Region Community Services Exhibit A Contractor Initial
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Sen/ices.

2. This Agreement is funded with Federal Funds from CFDA #93.670, Administration for
Children and Famifies, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN), #90CA1B58 and
General Funds.

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or future funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfitlment of this Agreement, and shad be in accordance with the approved
line item, as specified in Exhibits 8-1, Budget through Exhibit B-3. Budget.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20'^) working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred In the prior month.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to initiate payment

4.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

5. The Contractor shad keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

6. The final invoice shad be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Blo^ 1.7 Completion Date.

7. Ail invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord. NH 03301

8. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld. In whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law,.rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

Lakes Region Community Services ExhibH B Contractor inai^,
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10. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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Exhibit B-1

Budget

New Hampshlrs Department of Health and Human Services

BlddadProorin Nam*: Lah*t Ragion Community S*ivie** Family Raaourea CaniM

8ude*( R*qu**t lor; Community CollseoraUons to Str*ngtl>an and Praaarv* Fam ill**
(IMmerRFP)

eudeMPwtod: 3/SI201»«30n01S

Un*l

l^fogr
indiroel <: - - -

. Contractor Shar* I Match

1. Total Satarywaea*
75^10.00

2S.673.40
2, Emplov** B«r»afla

3. Conaiilam

4, Equlpmant
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Rapaif and Malntananc*

Purch**aC*or*ciatien

S. Suopa*a:
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ome* 1.270.00 1.270.00 1.270.00

1,000.00 1,00000
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8. Ctaram Eapanaaa

^Tajaghon^
^«taqa
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Boanl Eapana**

9. SoAwar*

10. MartaUno/CommurtcMlona

11, San Education and TiainfciQ

12. SUmaeBUa/Aommanta

13. Olh*r(*o*dlicdotalt»marylatorr1:

200,000.00
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Exhibit B-2

Budget

N«« HamptMra Dftpartmcnt of HmM) and Human Services

BIdiiM/PiooiMB N«m: LaliM f(*elen Cemmuntty SarvicM Fanay Raaoiaea Canlar

Budoat Requeel tor; Communty CeUabortlona (o Strannglhan and Riaaarva FamBlaa
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Una Ram

■ -Tatai PaoBtam Coa<- Centraeter Sliara I Uateb . ..Funded by 0HK3 contract artata-,-

1. Tem SatevrWaoaa

^_En2to2aa_Bana^^

a. Coiipmant
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_P»tNaa»Oagra^go^ 2.SOOOO 2^00
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Phaamaev

7^0000 7JOOOO
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_$aeaertgden^
Aaida and tape 1,10000

_Boa«a_Ei£inaa^
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Exhibit B-3

Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Hixnan Services

BMdwfPregrwe Nwn*: Laka* Raglan Communttit Sarrleaa Family Raaouma Contar

Budgol Raguaat fen Community CoUabonlona to Stranogthan and Ptaaaiva FimUaa
(MaaaeW^
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3. ConaUtarea
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PtachaaaCaoradWIon
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Otnea

7. Occupancy
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_Boaig_E»£»naa^ tS.OOO.OO
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
Individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to afalr
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it Is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notv/ithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement^n

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor InitU
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and ail invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall retum to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information conceming a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient^ hi^
attomey or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in theProposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as .
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and alt original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwithout
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Comptiance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has^nd has 50 s>*%
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at; http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the vMiistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initi!
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
rhean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4, Conditional Nature of Agreement. Is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, Including without limitation, the continuance of payments, In whole or In part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds.
Including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, In whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available. If ever;
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
Immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account Into the Account(s) Identified In block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination. Is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State Is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, Including but not limited to. Identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to, any Information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement. Including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transltloned to having services delivered by another
entity Including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services In the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected Individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed communications In its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions/Exceptions to Standard Contract Language Contractor Initial
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.}, and further agrees to have the Contractoi^s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I ■ FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and putslished as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initial
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

Date Name:Title: ^becca L Bzyant
President Sc CEO

tMKs

immunity ,
•uiriCM -
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
"Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
"Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated fiinds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

TiHe:^ R«bccca L Bryant
Prcjt«|?nt Sc CEO

^Ulll

^^MMUNTTY
letvicES
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Vendor Initia
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for othenwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
Include this clause entitled Xertihcation Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

Date Name:

Title: Rebecca L Bryant
. J^residCTit & CEO

x-^OMMUNirr
•MTICCS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or beneftts, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name:

5^3o\lc\
Date Name:

Title: Rebecca L. Biyant
i'hsidem & GEQ
^CfiiSugwiTY

•uricu
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONIVIENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local govemments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

g\3o\ii ,
Date Name: , •

Title: Rebccca L. Biytnt
President & CEO

^COMMUNITY
•BtriCKS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit i

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health information, 45
GFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaareoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor lnlti||s
Health Insurance Portability Act
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i. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart 0, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, Including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (il) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busln^s^

3/2014 ExWbitl Vendor Initi
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0  The nature and extent of the protected health Information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identlficatlon;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its intemal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivlriAP]
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Wthin ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the retum or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business^
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObliQatlons of Covered Entltv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) IVIIscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reculatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. ^

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor
Health Insurance Portability Act .
Business Associate Agreement gA j Q

Page 5 of 6 Date P [ I' i



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit!

Seoreaation. if any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services \ C6^

Tb©vState/ f _ Name of Jhe Veriaor ———

0 9o "
Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized F^^sen^ti^e^

preddcnt&CEOLf&ft
Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Name of Authorized Repress

Title of Authorized Representative

S\'?>o\
Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (FFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name:

Date Name: _

Title: i^'ebccca L Bryant
President ic CEO

tSKricet

Exhibit J - Certification Regardif>g the Federai Funding Vendor Initials
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FORMA

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. in your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/OHHS/110713
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103;

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

j2^
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud sen/ice or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev" 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, Including but not limited to: credit monitoring sen/ices, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvpted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onslte Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

V5. Lastupdate 10/09/18 ExhibitK Contractor
DHHS InformaWon

Security Requirements
Page 9 of 9 Date



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secrciary of Stoic of Ihc Sialc ofNcu* Hrnnpshirc. do licfcby certify ihot LAKES REGION
COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNGL is o New Hampshire NonproGi Corpomlioo irgisiercd to iransact business in Neu-

Hontpshin: on July 29, 1975.1 further certify Onl oil fees and documcnis required by Ihc Secretary of Simc's ofTicc have been
received and is hi good standing as far as Ihis office is concerned.

DioiiKss ID: 64109

CcrtilWaic Number: 0004493370

S
■s

A

4^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

i Iterclo SCI my hand and cause lu be afTixcd
die Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

this 8(1) day of April A D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Stale



QuickStart Page 2 of 3

Business Information

Business Details

LAKES REGION COMMUNITY
Business Nan,e: Business ID: 574503

Business Type: Trade Name Business Status: Active

Expiration Date: 3/19/2022
Last Renewal _ . ,

Not Available
Date:

Business Creation
Date:

Name in State of ,
Not Available

Formation:

Date of Formation in
Jurisdiction:

Principal Office 719 North Main St Laconia, Mailing Address: PO Box 509, Laconia, NH,

Address: NH, 03246, USA 03247, USA •

Business Email: NONE Phone #: NONE

Notification Email: NONE
Fiscal Year End

NONE
Date:

Principal Purpose

S.No NAICS Code NAICS Subcode

^  OTHER / services for developmentally
disabled individuals

Page 1 of 1. records 1 to 1 of 1

Trade Name Information

Business Name Business ID Business Status

Trade Name Owned By

Name Title Address

Lakes Region Community Services Council Good Standing

(/online/BusinessInquire/TradeNamelnformation? Business

businessID=34828)

https://quickstart.sos.nh.gov/online/BusinessInquire/BusinessInformation?businessID=388068 6/5/2019



QuickStart Page 2 of 7

Business Information

Business Details

LAKES REGION COMMUNITY
Business Name: Business ID; 64109

Domestic Nonprofit
Business Type*

Corporation
Business Status: Good Standing

Business Creation
07/29/1975

Date:

Name in State of . .. . .
Not Available

Incorporation:

Date of Formation in 0,^29/1975
Jurisdiction:

Principal Office 719 North Main Street, Mailing Address: PO Box 509, Laconia, NH,

Address: Laconia, NH, 03246, USA 03247, USA

Citizenship / State of ̂
Domestic/DATA NOT FOUND

Incorporation:

Last Nonprofit

Report Year:

Next Report

Year

Duration: Not Stated

Business Email: NONE Phone#: NONE

Notification Email: NONE
Fiscal Year End

NONE
Date:

Principal Purpose

S.No NAICS Code NAICS Subcode

No records to view.

https://quickstart.sos.nh.gov/online/BusinessInquire/BusinessInformation?businessID=34828 6/5/2019



LAKES REGION

SERVICES
Em^9W€f4

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

Without Seal

1, Lvnn Hilbrumier. do hereby certify that:

1. I am the duly elected Clerk of the Board of Directors of Lakes Region
Community Services Council.

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of
the Board of Directors of the Corporation duly held on February 20. 2019:

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the State of
New Hampshire, acting through its Department of Health and Human
Seryices, Diyision of Deyelopmental Services, for the provision of
Community Collaboration to.strengthen and preserve families;

RESOLVED: That the President & Chief Executive Officer (CEOI is hereby

authorized on behalf of Lakes Region Community Services Council to enter
into the said contract with the State of New Hampshire Department of Health
and Human Services; and to execute any and all documents, agreements^ and.
other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as
he/she may deem necessary, desirable, oi* appropriate.

3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in
full force and effect as of /V\qJS| .30 j ,3019 .

4. Rebecca L. Bryant is the duly elected President & CEO of the Corporation.

State of New Hampshire
County of Belknap

Corporatiun)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

l^aNi 201^.by LMr\r> uv>y\e,v~ .
I  (\f Clerk ofthe Corporation)

Notarv Seal
(Notary Pumic or Justice ofthe /^fcej

My Commission Expires: ̂ /O -



yACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rlqhts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementis).

PRODUCER

Melcher & Prescott Insurance

426 Main Street

Laconia NH 03246

NAME*^^ Jill Martineau, CIC
(603)524-4535

AnnRF««' jniartineautgimelcher-prescott.com

INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICF

INSURER A: ^^ss Say Insurance Company 22306

INSURED

Lakes Region Community Services Council

P 0 Box 509

Laconia NH 03246

INSURERS' Citizen Insurance Company 31534

INSURER c • State VUork Comp Manuf

INSURER 0- Hanover Insurance Company

INSURER E;

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL18121200698 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECTTO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

POLICY EPF
{mm/dd/yyyyiTYPE OF INSURANCE

OTDC

ItlSQ

SUBff
WVP POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY)

INSR
LTR .

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE I X] OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

BAMACE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrenca)

MEO EXP (Any ooa p>f»on)

ZDV8974270 12/01/2018 12/01/2019
PERSONAL 4 ADV INJURY

GENT AGGREGATE UM1T APPLIES PER:

POUCY JECT [3 LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG

Professional Liablli

1.000,000

100,000

20.000

1,000.000

3,000.000

3,000,000

$ 1,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UA8ILITY

ANYAUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acdatnil

s 1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Par parson)

OVWED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

ABV8928387 12/01/2018 12/01/2019 BODILY INJURY (Par accklant)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acdderw)

Medical payments S 5,000

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DEO

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
5,000,000

UHV8929075 12/01/2018 12/01/2019
AGGREGATE

5,000,000

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS-UABIUTY y»N

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(MarxJatory in NH)
If yas, das^ba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

PER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

WC0120181000836 01/01/2019 01/01/2020
E.L, EACH ACCIDENT

1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
1,000,000

E.L- DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional RamarVs Schadula, may ba atUchad if mora spaca Is raqulrad)

State of New Hampshire

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

/pMh ■'^fli0:lcAx/.cc
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



^—<;> LAKES REGION

^^QMMUNITY
SERVICES

Engage. Empower. Inspire.

Mission Statement

Dedicated to serving the community^ by promoting
Independence, dignity and opportunity.

Value Statements

As individuals and as a community} agency, we:

> Value all people:
> Value a team approach in all we do;
> Value and respect one another:
> Value our relationships in the communities in which we live and work:
> Value our role as facilitators of relationships; and
> Value and recognize that our relationships evolve, grow and change over time.

Main Office • PC Bo.\ 509,1.>acoma, NH 03247 • 800.649.8817 • 603.524.8811 • www.lrcs.org
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

PROFESSJOfiALASSOCWnON

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

WOLFEBORO • NORTH CONWAT

To the Board of Directors of

Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc.
Laconia, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We ̂ ve audited the accompanying financial statements of Lakes Region Community
Services Council, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of
financial position as of June 30. 2018 and 2017, and the related statements of cash flows
and notes to the financial statements for the years then ended, and the related statements
of activities and functional expenses for the year ended June 30,2018.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, vriiether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate In the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ail material
respects, the financial position of Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. as of
June 30, 2018 and 2017, and its cash flows for the years then ended, and the changes in
its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited the Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc.'s June
30, 2017 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited
financial statements In our report dated October 12, 2017. in our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, Is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has
been derived.

Report on Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole. The schedule of functional revenues on pages 17-19 is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements arxJ certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
October 12, 2018



UKES REGION COMMLIMITY RFRVICES mi IMril inr

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30. 2018 AND 9017

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposits
Accounts receivable:

Medlcaid

Other, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $50,000
at June 30. 2018 and 2017

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT. NET

OTHER ASSETS

Deposits

Total assets

2018

$ 4.830.595

580.310

168,049
27.068

5.606.022

3,649.931

37.779

2017

$ 4.476,109
251.277

628,782

199,615
63.990

5.619,773

3,716.911

37.779

g , 9.293.732 $ 9 374 48.'^

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSFT.<^
CURRENT LIABIUTIES

Accounts payable
Accrued salaries, wages, and related expenses
Accrued earned time

Refundable advances
Other accrued expenses

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM UABILITIES

Due to affiliates, net

Total liabllitjes

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

772,947
614.648

302,089
61.647
126.213

1.877.544

50.359

1.927.903

6.013.888
1.351,941

7.365,829

840.877

421.686
304.442

90.755
131.492

1,789,252

226.729

2.015.981

5.956.378
1.402.104

7.358.482

S  $ 9.37448.'^

See Notes to Financial Statements

3



LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL. \ur.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted 201B 2017

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Revenues

Program fees $ 1,390,224 $ S 1,390.224 $ 1,443,971
Medicald 20,737,838 - 20,737,838 20,595,182
Client resources 61,244 . 81,244 82,610
Other third party payers 35,478 - 35,478 67.776
Public support 382,754 . 382,754 306,229
Private foundations 65,500 . 65,500 73,814
Production/service income 231,390 . 231.390 247.821
Investment 8,763 . 8.763 3,263
State of New Hampshire • DOS 1,373.522 . 1,373,522 1,215,688
Management fees 18,412 . 18,412 18,537
Other 421,164 - 421,164 527.746

Total revenues 24.746,289 24.746.289 24,582,642

Expenses
Program services

Service coordination 1,130,386 - 1,130,386 1,213,529
Day programs 3,927,925 - 3,927,925 4,430,934
Early intervention 660,425 - 660,425 637.233
Enhanced family care 3.302.910 . 3,302,910 3.513,957
Community options 103,127 . 183,127 239,746
Community residences 8,097,051 . 8,097,051 7.283.139
Transportation 126,967 . 126.967 58,604
Family support 3,743,831 - 3,743,831 3,611,677
Other DDS 46,283 . 46,283 42,747
Other programs 1,068,319 - 1,068.319 1,038,515

Supporting activities
General management 2,249,930 50,153 2,300,093 1,969,720
Fundraising 151,625 - 151,625 149.573

Total expenses 24,688,779 50,163 24,738.942 24,089.377

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 57,510 (50,163) 7,347 493,265

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,956,378 1.402.104 7,358,482 6.865.217

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR S 1.351941 5-7.365.929 5 7.359.492

See Notes to Financial Statements

4



UAKES REGION COMMUNITY SFRVICES COUMni tur

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNF 30. 2018 AND

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash from operallrig activities:
Depredation
(Increase) decrease In assets;

Certiricdtes of deposits
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Deposits

Increase (decrease) In liabilities;
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries, wages, and related expenses
Accrued earned time

Refundable advances
Contingent liability, health Insurance costs
Other accrued expenses

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in due to affiliates

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

201B 2017

7.347 $ 493.265

236,345

251,277

80,038

36.922

(67.930)
192,962
(2.353)

(29,108)

(5.279)

700.221

(169.365)

(169.365)

(176.370)

(176.370)

354,486

4.476.109

245,253

249.156
801,407
11.007
2,100

(291,854)
(119.684)
(10.359)
33,014

(200,000)
(53.749)

1.159.556

(125.799)

(125.799)

(99.568)

(99.568)

934.189

3,541,920

g, S 4.47610Q

See Notes to Rnancial Statements

5



LAKES REGION COMMUNtTY SFRVICES COUNCtL. IMft

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Service Day Early Enhanced Community
Coordination Proarams Intervention Family Care Ootlons

PERSONNEL COSTS

Salaries and wages S  665,194 $ 2,360.480 $  373,935 S  202.504 $  114,938
Employee benefits 182,300 645.673 103,156 55,667 31,384
Payroll taxes 49.100 179,271 26,865 14.204 7,851
PROFESSIONAL FEES AND

CONSULTATIONS

Clerical contracted staff

Client treatment & therapies 124,178 . 2,954,675
Accounting/auditing •

Legal 4.055
Subcontract services 1,002 • 98,616
Other professional fees 27,217 28 72
STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Journals and publications _

Conference/conventions 56 857
Other staff development 793 506 180
OCCUPANCY COSTS

Rent - 81,548
Mortgage payments - _

Utilities - 11,508 • 128
Repairs and maintenance 55 2,227 . 4,625
Other occupancy costs 41.040 32.003 31,022 13.703 2,776
CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES

Office supplies and equipment
under $2,500 3.436 9,927 5,522 6

Building/household - 1,310
Client 885 5,236 105 19,021
Medical supplies . 69 1,003
ASSISTANCE TO INDIVIDUALS 2,091 24
PRODUCT SALES . 25,729
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 2,194 2,962 439
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 1,207 2,611 1,557
DEPRECIATION . 11,020
ADVERTISING - 181 570
PRINTING 508 W 2.425
TELEPHONE 31 8,535
POSTAGE . 10

TRANSPORTATION 13,285 413.243 18,129 30.358 25,912
INSURANCE . .

MEMBERSHIP DUES 8,788 451

CLIENT PAYMENTS 34 123,616 1,022 174
INTEREST . •

OTHER 2.937 9.781 920 1,851 266

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES $  1,130,386 $ 3.927,925 $  660,425 $ 3.302.910 $  103.127

See Notes to Financial Statements



kAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERV|^j;s COUNCii iKin

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFQRMATinM

Community Family
ResldencBS Transportation Support

Othor

DDS

PERSONNEL COSTS

Salaries and wages $
Employee benefits
Payrolt taxes

PROFESSIONAL FEES AND

CONSULTATIONS

Clerical contracted staff

Client treatment & therapies
Accounting/auditing
Legal
Subcontract services

Other professional fees
STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Journals and publications
Conference/conventions
Other staff development

OCCUPANCY COSTS

Rent

Mortgage payments
Utilities

Repairs and maintenance
Other occupancy costs
CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES

OfTice supplies and equipment
under $2,500

Building/household
Client

Medical supplies
ASSISTANCE TO INDIVIDUALS

PRODUCT SALES

EQUIPMENT RENTAL

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION

ADVERTISING

PRINTING

TELEPHONE

POSTAGE

TRANSPORTATION

INSURANCE

MEMBERSHIP DUES '
CUENT PAYMENTS

INTEREST

OTHER

3.694.648 $
1.005,647

269,066

128.286

2,231.303

210.710

8,805

106.920

27.301

55,910

15,888

23,881

125.258

4,804

100

219

5,866

30.589

5,821

145.628

39

362

19,671 $ 1.191.783
5.369 320.146
1.427 93,620

1.458.407

70

3,700

11,426

85.304

350,437

6,433

3.128

53

310

11,217

10

5,491

3,254

28.937

549

3,554

186,097

78.954

274

1,177

38,756

2.668

25

2.080

2.565

189

General

Manaaemenf

1.054.238

237.167

77.304

107.119

2.728

135

203.666

972

7,900

25.705

51,945

96,356

(169.491)

39,815

1.628

7.065

17.160

40.116

183,310

28,510

3,911

92,876

17,825

182

86,532

49.353

9.964

26.082

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES $ 8.097.051 $ 126.967 $ 3.743.631 $ 46.283 $
2.300.093

See Notes to Financial Statements
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LAKES REGION CQMMUNtTY SERVICES COUNCIL INC

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2018

Total Total

DDS Non-DDS 2018 2017
Fundralslna Funded Funded Totals Totals

PERSONNEL COSTS

Salaries and wages $  88.050 $ 9.765.441 S  674,544 S 10.439,985 $ 10,021,042
Employee benefits 24,637 2,611,145 186,385 2,797,531 2,757,432
Payroll taxes 6,399 725,107 53,151 778,258 745,874
PROFESSIONAL FEES AND

CONSULTATIONS

Clerical contracted staff - - . 5,699
Client treatment & therapies - 4,665,546 (11.749) 4,653,797 4,812,549
Accounting/auditing - 107,119 - 107,119 127,486
Legal - 6,783 - 6,783 10,064
Subcontract services - 2,681,493 32,000 2,713.493 2,282,214
Other professional fees 395 276,587 . 276,587 306,130
STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Journals and publications - 972 . 972 71
Conference/conventions 5,040 19,649 7,017 26,666 14,749
Other staff development - 27,237 3.600 30,837 117,303
OCCUPANCY COSTS

Rent - 292,568 - 292.568 264,669
Mortgage payments - 8.805 - 8,805 8,857
Utilities - 170,501 134 170,635 156,023
Repairs and maintenance

- 130,564 92 130,656 130,679
Other occupancy costs - 18,180 63,802 81,982 61,421
CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES

Office supplies and equipment
under $2,500 50. 74,714 2,083 76.797 71,097

Building^ousehold 40 26,869 108 26,977 20,626
Client 574 163,660 9,805 173,465 181,069
Medical supplies - 11,210 177 11,387 9,305
ASSISTANCE TO INDIVIDUALS 30 31,182 6.614 37,796 35,758
PRODUCT SALES - 25,729 . 25,729 36,756
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 219 23,742 1,537 25,279 32.159
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE - 55,057 - 55,057 33,378
DEPRECIATION - 236,345 - 236,345 245,253
ADVERTISING 1,139 33.954 - 33,954 30,125
PRINTING 5,839 12.683 _ 12,683 8,761
TELEPHONE - 107,263 - 107,263 94,523
POSTAGE 497 18,332 27 18,359 17,230
TRANSPORTATION - 920,703 31,688 952,391 924,054
INSURANCE - 86,532 - 86,532 87,579
MEMBERSHIP DUES 3,821 141,367 450 141.817 119,619
CLIENT PAYMENTS - 135,123 1,150 136,273 162,771
OTHER 14.895 58,460 5,704 64.164 157,052

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES $  151.625 $ 23,670.623 $ 1,068.319 $ 24,738.942 $ 24,089.377

See Notes to Firiancial Statements



COUNCIL. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 AND 2Q17

"l- ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIRCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Lakes Region Community Seivices Council, Inc. (the Council) is a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation organized exclusively for charitable purposes to ensure there is a coordinated and
efficient program of human services dealing effectively with the problems and needs of the
deveiopmentaily impaired of Belknap County, lower Grafton County and the surroundina
communities. "

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. have been
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The Council is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net
assets, and permanently restricted net assets. The classes of net assets are determined by
the presence or absence of dorior restrictions.

Unrestricted: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.
Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of
the Board of Directors.

Temporarily Restricted: Net assets whose use is limited by donor-imposed
stipulations that will either expire with the passage of time or be fulfilled or
removed by actions of the Council.

Permanently Restricted: Reflects the historical cost of gifts (and in certain
circumstances, the earnings from those gifts), subject to donor - imposed
stipulations, which require the corpus to be invested in perpetuity to produce
income for general or specific purposes.

As of June 30. 2018 and 2017, the Council had unrestricted and temporarily restricted net
assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Council considers all demand
deposits, money market funds, and short-term investments with original maturities of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

Certificates of Deposits

The certificates of deposits are carried at fair value. Interest is accrued and recognized in
Income when earned.



Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a
charge to activities and a credit to a valuation allowance based on historical account write
off patterns by the payor, adjusted as necessary to reflect current conditions. Balances that
are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off
through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable.

The Council has no policy for charging interest on overdue accounts nor are its accounts
receivable pledged as collateral, except as disclosed in Note 3.

It is the policy of the Council to provide services to all eligible residents of central New
Hampshire without regard to ability to pay. As a result of this policy, all charity care write
offs are recorded as reductions in revenue in the period in which services are provided. The
accounts receivable allowance includes the estimated amount of charity care and
contractual allowances included in the accounts receivable balances. The computation of
the contractual allowance is based on historical ratios of fees charged to amounts collected.

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor for future periods or
for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support,
depending on the nature of the restrictions. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same
period in which the contribution is received, the Council reports the support as unrestricted.

Propertv. Plant and Depreciation

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if contributed, at estimated fair value at the
date of contribution. Material assets with a useful life in excess of one year are capitalized.
Depreciation is provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize
the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 5-40 Years
Fumiture. fixtures and equipment 3-10 Years

Costs for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred and betterments are
capitalized. Assets sold or othenwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along with
the related accumulated depreciation, and any gain or loss is recognized.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Council's financial instruments consist of cash, certificates of deposits, short-term
receivables and payables and customer deposits. The carrying value for all such
instruments, considering the terms, approximates fair value at June 30, 2018 and 2017.
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Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are incurred.

Summarized Financial Information
The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in
total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute
a preseritation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. Accordingly, such information should be read In conjunction with the Council's
financial statements for the year ended June 30. 2017, from which the summarized information
was derived.

Accrued Earned Time

The Council has accrued a liability for future compensated leave time that its employees have
eamed and which is vested with the employee.

Income Taxes

The Council is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(cK3) of the Internal Revenue
Code. The Internal Revenue Service has determined the Council to be other than a orivate
foundation. ^

Managemerit has evaluated the Council's tax positions and concluded that the Council has
maintained its tax-exempt status and has taken no uncertain tax positions that would require
adjustment to the financial statements. With few exceptions, the Council is no longer subject
to income tax examinations by the United States Federal or State tax authorities prior to 2015.

Advertising

The Council expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functionai basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the program services and
supporting activities benefited.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

11



2. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, property and equipment consisted of the following:

2018 2017

Buildings and improvements
Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Vehicles

Land

Construction in progress

Total
Less accumulated depreciation

$ 3,936,642 $  3,920,342
393.215 327,817
741.192 700.482
173,352 117,452
152,200 152,200
2.643 11.585

5,399,244 5.229,878
1.749.313 1.512.967

Property and equipment, net

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30. 2018 and 2017 amounted to $236,345
and $245,253. respectively.

3. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Council maintains a revolving line of credrt with a bank. The revolving line of credit
provides for maximum borrowings up to $3,000,000 andJs renewable annually. Effective
February 2, 2018 the Council renewed the revolving line of credit through December 31, 2018.
and is collateralized by all of the business assets of the Council and guaranteed by related
nonprofit organizations (see Note 8). At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the interest was stated at
the bank's prime rate of 5.00% and 4.25%, respectively. There was no amount outstanding on
this line of credit at June 30, 2018 and 2017.

4. RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Council received donated surplus property in the
form of a building. The temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2018 and 2017 consist of
the net value of the building. The use of this building is restricted by deed for thirty years from
the date of donation. As depreciation expense reduces the net book value of the building,
temporarily restricted net assets are adjusted accordingly.

12



5. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Council maintains a retirement plan for all eligible employees. During the years ended
June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Council made matching contributions of 100% of a participant's
sala^ reduction that was not in excess of 1.5% of the participant's compensation All
employees who work one thousand hours per year are eligible to participate after one year of
employment. The Council's contribution to the retirement plan for the years ended June 30
2018 and 2017 was $59,488 and $53,148, respectively.

6. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, approximately 84% of the total revenue was
denved from Medicaid. The future existence of the Council is dependent upon continued
support from Medicaid.

In order for the Council to receive Medicaid funding, they must be formally approved by the
State of New Hampshire. Division of Health and Human Services (DHHS) as the provider of
services for developmentally disabled individuals for that region. In June 2016 the Council
was re-designated for the period September 2015 through September 2020.

Medicaid receivables comprise approximately 78% and 76% of the total accounts receivable
balances at June 30,2018 and 2017, respectively.

7. LEASE COMMITMENTS

Th^e Council has entered into various operating lease agreements to rent certain facilities and
office equipment for their community residences and other programs. The terms of these
leases range from one to ten years. The Council also leases various apartments on behalf of
clients on a month-to-month basis. Rent expense under these agreements aggreqated
$317,847 and $296,828 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Amount

2019 $ 111.466
2020 40,116
2021 17,616
2022 11.862

Refer to Note 8 for information regarding a lease agreement with a related party.
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8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Lakes Region Community Services Council, Inc. Is related to the following nonprofit
corporations as a result of common board membership:

Related Party

Genera Corporation

Greater Laconia Transit Agency

Lakes Region Community Services Foundation

Function

Manages and leases property

Provided transportation
services

Solicit, receive, and administer
fundraising efforts for the benefit of
the Council and others

Lakes Region Community Services Council. Inc. has contracts and transactions with the
above related parties during its normal course of operations. The significant related party
transactbns are as folbws:

Received From:

Genera Corporation

Genera Corporalbn

Paid To:

Genera Corporation

Lakes Region Community
Services Foundation

Due (ToVFrom:

Genera Corporation

Greater Laconia Transit

Agency

Lakes Region Community
Services Foundation

2018

$  14,400 $

$  14,988 $

2018

$  109,800 $

$  - $

2018

$  (29,573) $

(20.786)

2017 Purpose

14,400 Management. Accounting
and Financial Services

14,988 I nsurance Reimbursement

2017

109,800 Rental of Homes

50,000 Contribution

2017

(61,643)

(15,086)

(150.000)

S  ̂ 50.359) S (226.729)

There are no specified terms of payment and no interest stated on the related party due (to)
from accounts.
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Demand Note Payable

The Council's demand note payable is guaranteed by Genera Corporation {see Note 3).

Rent

JJ!! agreement with Genera Corporation which calls for annualrent payments. The future minimum lease payments under the lease are $109,800, annually.

Insurance Reimbursement

Lakes R^ion Community Services Council, Inc. carries a joint liability policy with the related
K  Community Services Council, inc. pays for the coverage in fulland then is reimbursed by the affiliates based on contracts between the agencies.

Prepaid Expenses Related to Affiliated Oraaniyatinn
]me Council has recorded prepaid expenses related to advances paid to Greater Laconia
Trar^it Agency for the purchase of vehicles to be used solely for the transportation services for
^he ̂ uncil s consumers. There were no advances for the years ended June 30. 2018 and

The Council is expensing these advances over the useful lives of the vehicles (3 - 7 vearsi
Accordingly, Greater Laconia Transit Agency has recorded the advances as deferred revenue
and IS recognizing income consistently over the useful lives of the vehicles. The total amount
of the advances expensed by the Council and included as revenue by Greater Laconia Transit
Agency was $25,420 and $18,246 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

9. CONTINGENCIES ■ GRANT COMPLIANCE
The Council receives funds under various state grants and from Federal sources Under the
terms of these agreerments the Council is required to use the funds within a certain period and
for purposes specift^ by the goveming laws and regulations. If expenditures were found not

to replay ® regulations, the Council may be required
No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts, if any have not
been determined or assessed by government audits as of June 30,2018.

10. CLIENT FUNDS

The Council administers funds for certain consumers. No asset or liability has been recorded

$2^7^^^^^^^^^^ ^99^^^ted

11. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
The Council maintains cash balances that, at times may exceed federally insured limits The
balanres are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250 000 at
June 30, 2018 and 2017^ In addition to FDIC coverage, certain deposits of the CounS a^^^
insured or collaleralized through other means. The Coundl has not experienced any losses in
such a^unts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with these accounts At

ar$28a3?a ''''''
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION RISK
The Council maintains a repurchase account agreement with a bank. A portion of the
Council's overnight deposit bank balances are divided into amounts under the FDfC limit of
$250,000 and swept into various insured bank accounts. This agreement provides flexibility to
the Council by allowing them to maintain large cash balances in excess of the standard FDIC
limit individually, but when spread across multiple banks, providing insurance for the full
amount of the repurchase account.

13. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were reclassified to
enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the estimates
inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Non recognized subsequent
events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the statement
of financial position dale, but arose after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent
events through October 12, 2018, the date the June 30. 2018 financial statements were
available for issuance.

16



1-AKE5 REGION COMMUNITY SFRViri=S COUNCIL IMl^,

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Program fees'
Medlcaid

Client resources
Other third party payers
Public support
Private foundatioris

Production/service income

Investment

State of New Hampshire - DOS
Management fees
Other

Senrice

Coordination

$ 2,093

887.976

7,500

1,117

1.649

Day
Programs

$  1,960
3,592,752

6,648

27,978

230,273

4,508

Early
Intervention

S 20,361

750.688

21,930

96,196

239

Enhanced

Family Cara

$  832,606

3.635.792

20,183

1,000

Community
Options

268,890

6.178

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL REVENUES $ 900.335 $ 3.864.119 $ 869.414 $ 4.489.581 $ 275.068
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LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTtONAL REVENUES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Program fees
Medicaid

Client resources

Other third party payers
Public support
Private fourxlations

Production/service income

Investment

State of New Hampshire - DDS
Management fees
Other

Community
Residences Transportation

$  339,069 S

6,917,216

32,120

23,418

Family
Support

$  135

4.516,237

16,115

401

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL REVENUES $ 7,311,823 $ $ 4,532,888

Other

DDS

Genera)

Management

$  59.578 $ 69,905

810

8.763

1,277,326

14,400
^,362

60,388 S 1,401,756
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kAKKS REGION COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIl mc.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Total Total

Program fees
Medicaid

Client resources

Other third party payers
Public support
Private foundations

Production/service Income

Investment

Stale of New Hampshire • DOS
Management fees
Other

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL
REVENUES

DOS Non-DOS 2018 2017
Fundraislna Funded Funded Totals Totals

$ $  1.325.707 $  64.517 $ 1.390.224 S  1,443.971
- 20,569.551 168,287 20,737.838 20.595.182
- 81,244 - 81,244 82.810
- 35.478 - 35,478 67.776

55,668 77,598 305,156 382,754 306.229
-

- 65.500 65,500 73.814
- 231,390 - 231,390 247.621
- B.763

- 8.763 3,268
- 1.373,522 - 1.373.522 1.215.688
- 14,400 4.012 18,412 18,537

(36.7031 26.684 394.480 421,164 527.746

$  18.965 $  23.744.337 $  100195? ^4.746.289 5 . 24.582.64?
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Lakes Region Community Services
Board of Directors 2018 - 2019

•/*GarY Lemay, President

V Margaret Selig, Vice President

V *Lvnn Hilbrunner. Secretar

V*Carrie Chase, Treasurer

V*R. Stuart Wallace, Past Board President

/Rosa Michaud, Member-at-La

Randy Perkins

Richard Crocker

Carrett Lavallee

Catherine Walker

*Thomas Costigan Jr.

*Jeanin Onos

Sarah Rubu

*Kurt Christensen

Kirk Beattie

DIRECTORS EMERITI

Matthew Canfield, Director Emeritus

V Denotes Executive Committee Member
* Denotes a Board Member Consumer

(6/20/18 Rev. 8/15/18; 11/13/18; 1/30/19; S/22/19)



'ReBecca L. Rryant

EDUCATION

New England College
May 2018 Master of Business Administxation & Non Profit Leadership Graduate Certificate

Keene State College
May 1995 Bachelor of Science, Business Management, Accounting Concentration

♦ Management Award
• NH Small Business Institute Project of the Year

* Business Manager, Equinox, Kcene State Student Newspaper

EXPERIENCE

Lakes Region Community Sendees ♦ Laconia, New Hampsliixe
President & CEO October 2016 — Current

Chief Executive Officer of Community Based Not-For-Profit Corporation. Responsible for overall administration of
a $30 million with 400 employees, 100 private contractors, and serving thousands of individuals and families in the
greater Lakes Region. Responsible for the development and oversight of a community based social services system
including services to infants, children, families and elders through the lifespan. Provide total agency leadership, fiscal
management, risk management, program stewardship. Report to and work closely with the Board of Directors.

Director of Finance April 2007 — October 2016

Chief Financial Officer. Oversaw financial and personnel administration for private non-profit human ser\dces
agenq' with an annual budget of $30 million and 400 employees. Prepared and monitored annual budgets.
Negotiated funding requests with the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sendees
(NHDHHS). Responsible for all funding compliance for NHDHHS and Center for Medicare and Medicaid
Sendees (CMS.) Prepared and managed contracts with funding sources and vendors. Oversaw Agency Risk
Management program. Administered the agenq''s compensation and benefits plans. Ensured compliance with
applicable state and federal labor regulations. Oversaw the installation and support of agency Information
Technolog)'. Major accomplishments include work on the $2.5mil Capital Campaign, compete IT Infrastructure
overhaul, significant human capital and programmatic bridge building between Finance and
Operations. Reported to and work closely with the Board of Directors and Executive Director.

Wilcom ̂  Laconia, New Hampshire
Controller 2000-April 2007

Controller for Telecommunications Manufacturer celebrating 40 years in business in 2007. Direct report to the
Vice President/Chief Financial Officer and President, Chief Operating Officer in New York. Responsible for
all functions and employees in: Accounting, Sales, MIS, Customer Scr\tice, Human Resources and Facilities. As
Acting General Manager responsible for NH Operations in the absence of the President and Vice President.
During tenure with this company successes included; writing and negotiating GSA proposal to obtain GSA
Schedule Award, creating and maintaining multiple government registrations including CCR, JCP, ORCA and
AES Direct, maintaining 100% in-house collections for receivables, and supervision of office renovation
project. As part of accounting function maintained two day month end close with a manual closing system. In
fulfilling MIS supervisor)' role, led MIS through major web site overhaul with outside vendor, MRP system
upgrade, and phone system upgrade. Led Sales Department through transition from reliance on outside sales
and manufacturer's reps to 100% inside sales through restructuring, hiring and daily oversight of Sales
Department.



Freudenberg-NOK General Piirtnership ♦ Bristol, New Hampsliire
Hyperion Administrator]\x\y 2000-Augusc 2000

Assistant Hyperion Administrator 1999-July 2000

Assistant Treasury Manager Octohtt 1997-january 1999

As Hyperion Administrator, responsible for compiling monthly data feeds from 16 locadons throughout the
United States, Mexico and Brazil and producing consolidated financial statements. Assisted the Hyperion
Administrator, maintained all aspects of financial database, wrote logic for the financial statements,
administered system security, troubleshot for end users of database, and wrote reports for financial analysts.
Prepared a multitude of comprehensive financial reports for tlie parent
company in Germany. Communicated daily with tlic controllers and financial analysts in the United States and

Europe to ensure timely collection and distribution of financial data. As Assistant Treasury Manager
managed day-to-day activities of the Treasury Department including cash management, debt management, risk
management (insurance and foreign currency hedging,) worker's compensation, corporate centralized accounts
payable, intra-company accounts payable and receivable, as well as reconciliations of all general ledger accounts
relating to treasury. Fulfilled ail duties of both the Treasury Manager and Assistant Treasury Manager for nine
months in the absence of the Treasury Manager.

SKILLS, CERTIFICATIONS
♦ Justice of the Peace, State of New Hampshire
• Notar)' Public, State of New Hampshire
♦ Leadership Lakes Region Class of 2008

• Proficiency in all Microsoft Office Applications
♦ Significant experience and proficiency with accounting systems including. Dynamics, Solomon, QAD, Hyperion

♦ Paylocit)', ADP and Harper's Payroll Systems
♦ Business Process Kaizen

• LEAN

BOARD SERVICE

♦ Treasurer, Executive Committee, Communit)' SecNdces Network Inc, (CSNI) 2017 - Current
* Board Member, Sigma One Manufacturer's Workers' Compensation Taist 2010 - Current

* Secretar)', Executive Committee, Communit)' Health Ser\'ices Network (CHSN) 2016 — Current
♦ Board Member, Greater Laconia Transit Agency (GLTA) 2016 — Current

* Board Member, Genera Corporation, 2016 — Current
• Corporator, Franklin Savings Bank

COMMUNITY SERVICE

• Middle Level Steering Committee, Moultonborough School District 2017 — Current
♦ Superintendent Search Committee, Moultonborough School District, 2016 - 2017

• Children's Ministry Volunteer, Grace Capital Church 2015 - 2017
♦ Committee Chair, Moultonborough Cub Scout Pack 369 2013 - 2015

♦ Den leader, Cub Scout Pack 369 2005 - 2015
♦ Advancements Chair, Cub Scout Pack 369 2005 - 2009

♦ Sunday School Teacher — Middle Class & Teens, Moultonborough United Methodist Church 2007 — 2015
♦ Nursery Coordinator, Moultonborough United Methodist Church 2005 - 2007

• Youth Basketball Coach 2013 - 2014

♦ Vacation Bible School, Moultonborough United Methodist Church 2005 - 2014
♦ Chair, Recreation Advisory Board, Town of Moultonborough 2008 - 2010

J



'ReBecca £. Rryant

^References Available Upon Request
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Shelley Kelleher

Skills Solomon Dynamics SL Accounting, Paylocity, Harpers, QuickBooks, Access and Excel including VBA,
PowerPoint, Word, SAP

Lakes Region Community Services Laconia, NH

2017-Present Vice President & Chief Financial Officer-Oversee financial administration and risk management of a private
non-profit human services agency with a budget of $27M and 500 employees.

2012-2016 Controller-Responsible for the day-to-day supervision of staff performing the accounting and payroll functions
for a private non-profit human services agency with a budget of $26M.

- Ensure 500 employees are paid accurately
-Manage Stale and Federal contract funding ensuring compliance.
-Review internal control procedures writing new and updating controls.
-Liaison with external auditors for annual audit, A-133 audit, and 403B audit.

-Prepare monthly financial statements for all businesses with over 300 cost centers.
-403B Committee member.

2007-201 1 Senior Staff Accountant-Maintain the integrity, security, and reliability of the financial systems through accurate
and efficient management of the financial records.

-Prepare, review, and distribute monthly operating statements.
-Maintain chart of accounts.

-Perform monthly balance sheet reconciliations.
-Organize data collection and prepare audit schedules for external audit.
-Assist in preparation of the annual budget.

Arrow Enterprise Storage Solutions/A ECS Englewood, CO

2001 -2006 Finance Manager-Manage controls and accuracy of financial data for $300M division.

-Budget and forecast P&L and ROWC.
-Participate in quarterly business reviews, sales and budget reviews to Senior Management.
-Compile monthly reports for 4 divisions (revenue of $1 billion) to Senior Management on financial statistics,
product line and customer sales, headcount, productivity, and trend analysis.
-Analyze and manage data through Access database and Visual Basic.
-Provide division analysis for the BOD updates and quarterly analyst earnings calls for Arrow Electronics.

MOCA, Inc. An Arrow Company Marlborough, MA

2000-2001 Senior Manager, Financial Planning and Analysis-Manage the planning and analysis for MOCA a division of
Merisel sold to Arrow Electronics.

-Develop corporate annual budget and monthly forecasts, design department profit and loss analysis, examine
monthly expenses, and prepare A/R reserve reports.
-Audit incentive bonus statistics.

-Administer an accounts receivable database including G/L reconciliation, automation of the distribution and the
data archive function, and design new reports using Visual Basic programming.
-Supervise financial analyst in OA office.

1996-2000 Merisel, Incorporated Marlborough, MA

NAM Reporting and Financial Analysis Manager-Manage subsidiary reporting and analysis.



-Design and analyze NAM AR Reports for CFO and VP of Financial Services.
-Forecast and analyze actual performance of Balance Sheet Reserves for US and Canadian subsidiary. Present
and discuss reserve analysis with the CFO at monthly reserve meeting.
- Manage bad debt process starting at system write-off including collection agency management, PFC process, and
database reporting to assist the tracking of collections, bankruptcies, and bad debt trends.
-Prepare and analyze $12 million US and C$2 million Canadian budgets for 14 cost centers including monthly
DSD and bad debt provision forecast.
-Analyze customer credit worthiness and make credit line recommendations for accounts over $ I million.
-Coordinate facility move to a new location.
-Developed process to reduce Dun & Bradstreet expenses by $130,000 annually resulting in a 70% cost reduction.
-Supervise reporting analyst and admin staff.

1987 to 1996 State Street Bank & Trust Company Quincy, MA

Client Service Manager-Administer the accounting for several large corporate Domestic and International
pension and 401 k clients with $4 to $6 billion in assets.

-Manage a staff of 10.
-Responsible for establishing and maintaining client relationships.
-Reengineer staff workflow which doubled throughput and decreased reporting time by 30%.

Auditor-Coordinate the timely completion and accuracy of over 90 monthly financial statements, maintain audit
copies with all supporting documentation, implement new procedures, and train employees.

-Audit a daily pricing fund, and maintain control logs for corporate actions and income collection.

Education Master of Studies in Law

Wake Forest University Law School
Winston Salem, NC

December 2019 anticipated graduation
Business Law and Compliance

Master of Business Administration

Bentley University, Waltham, MA
Concentration: Finance

May 1993
Graduate School of Business

BA in Economics and Political Science

University of Massachusetts, Boston, MA
July 1987

School of Arts and Sciences



Erin Pettenglll, M.S.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Family Resource Center Director- December 1, 2015-present Lakes Region Community Services

Laconia, NH

As the director of the Family Resource Center 1 am responsible for the comprehensive family support
services for 1200 families in Central NH. 1 oversee the management of programs including Early

Supports and Services, the Autism Center, Step Ahead. 1 am responsible for staff of 20, including
physical therapists, family support aides and program managers. A significant part of my job is to
research and apply for grants to support families in catchment area. Grants awarded include funding from
the Linden Foundation, Pardoe Foundation and the Van Otterloo Grant. I also represent LRCS on

community and statewide initiatives, ensuring collaboration with area agencies and organizations.

Transition Coordinator- September 2010- November 2015 Lakes Region Community Services
Plymouth,NH
Part of the transition coordinators role is to work with families, individual, school systems and other
various agencies to advocate and develop a plan for when an individual enters adult services. Part of the
planning process includes facilitating the guardianship process, conducting state interviews, developing a
budget based on the needs and support of the individual and coordinating services based on the money
allocated. This job requires proficiency in social security benefits, Medicaid, state regulations and
community connections. In conjunction with this role I became a certified START coordinator for the
state of New Hampshire, with the focus on supporting dual diagnosed individuals.

In Home Counselor-July 2007 - July 2010
Family Preservation Community Services, Asheville, NC
Nonprofit Charitable Organizations
As an In Home Counselor for foster care my job was to supervise the foster parents. Additionally, I
counseled the foster children in the home and provided crisis stabilization when needed. My other
responsibilities included but were not limited to arranging team meetings, being a liaison between the
foster family and other support members (Department of Social Services, community support, school
districts, etc.). I was also responsible for providing documentation of visits and monitoring their books for
certifications purposes. My primary duty was to make sure that the foster home ran smoothly and to
develop solutions for any problems that arose.

EDUCATION:

Bachelor's Degree, 8/ 2000 - 12/2004 Keene State College | Keene, NH
Master's Degree in Counseling, 9/2009-3/2012 Capella University | Minneapolis, MN

SKILLS:

Certified Work Incentives Benefits Specialist

Certified START Coordinator

Qualified Mental Health Professional

REFERENCES

References available upon request



Lakes Region Community Services Council

Kev Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Rebecca Bryant President & CEO 135,000 0 0

Shelley Kelleher Vice President & CFO 95,000 0' 0

Erin Pettengill VP of Family Resource
Center

58,000 40 23,200


